ShMxk(PE)IERAT”
HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

(REBEZAMBET 2 ERAAF) (Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(P& 5 1£ 5% Stock code: 00818)

Annual Report
F# 2012

* For Identification Purpose Only
[EREE 3l




Contents

H &k

Corporate Information

Directors and Senior Management

Letter from the Board

Management Discussion and Analysis
Corporate Governance Report

Report of the Directors

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Income Statement

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Balance Sheet

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary Financial Information

NREF
EEkEEERAE
E=glft
BEE i
PEERWE
EEewmE

B AZ RN R
fre R
mezElEE
mEEEAGBRK
BEAEBR
mERREHR
mEHeRER
fre MR IR M
MBERE

AT



2 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Corporate Information

AR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

CHEUNG Yuk Fung (Chairman)

KUI Man Chun (Chief Executive Officer)
XU Wensheng

LI Wenjin

XU Chang Jun

Non-Executive Director
CHANG Kai-Tzung, Richard

Independent Non-Executive Directors
TAM Chun Fai

LEUNG Wai Man, Roger

XU Sitao

COMPANY SECRETARY
CHAN Yiu Kwong
HUI Lok Yan

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
LI Wenjin
CHAN Yiu Kwong

BERMUDA RESIDENT REPRESENTATIVE

John Charles Ross Collis
(resigned on 14 March 2013)

Codan Services Limited
(appointed on 14 March 2013)

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong Law
Woo Kwan Lee & Lo

Reed Smith Richards Butler
Leung & Lau, Solicitors

As to Bermuda Law
Conyers Dill & Pearman

Exg

BITES
REE(EE)
REF (TTHABE)
X%

FXE

REE

FHUITES

SR

BAFIITES
B IR
RER

e =2
u?um/ﬁ

DNEWE
PRI

Bl

RERE
FXE
PRI

BREZMERRE

John Charles Ross Collis
(R—ZT—=F=A+NHEET)

Codan Services Limited

(RZZ—Z=F=ZA+MHBEEZEE)

3

B RRNGE B A AT ST
EEREMR

EER

AT ERETT

BB O ETT
RE BB ESEMTT

BRERE

Conyers Dill & Pearman



SRR (PE) BRAAF

—B-cEER 3

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
China Construction Bank Corporation

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 2515, 25th Floor

Sun Hung Kai Centre

30 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRAR IN BERMUDA
Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG
Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 25

Three Pacific Place

No.1 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.hisun.com.hk

STOCK CODE
818

Corporate Information

2 A EFE

FEARRIT

hE TRR1T (M) BRAF
EERITERAR
BELEERRTARDA
R RRITIRINERA A

SR
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

BERTEERME
E

BEIE 3058
FrsEA L
2512515 F

BRERVBFERZE

Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke

Bermuda

BROBFELEEETRE
SEERIEARAF

BB

SRAERR

KBS =&
25418

DA A

www.hisun.com.hk

IR AR

818



4 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Directors and Senior Management

s R R E AR

As at 14 March 2013, the date of the Report of the Directors, the
biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

CHEUNG YUK FUNG Chairman

Mr. Cheung, aged 66, is the Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company. He graduated from the Faculty of Radio Electronics at
Peking University in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and
worked as a professor at Peking University thereafter. Prior to joining
the Group in 2001, Mr. Cheung was a chairman of a company listed
in the PRC, namely Founder Technology Group Corporation and a
director of a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), namely Founder Holdings Limited,
and has working experience in international trade, finance, asset
management and strategic planning. Mr. Cheung was honoured with
many awards, including being selected as the young entrepreneur
with outstanding contribution to China, and won the first prize of
national golden award for enterprise initiators in the 4th National
Technology Industrialist Award and many other awards.

KUI MAN CHUN Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kui, aged 46, is the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive
Director of the Company. He graduated from Peking University in the
PRC with a master degree in international relations and has over 20
years of experience in the information technology industry and
investment activities. Mr. Kui is also the chairman, chief executive
officer and a director of Hi Sun Limited (“HSL”), the Company’s
substantial shareholder. Prior to joining HSL in 2000, Mr. Kui was the
president of an enterprise in the PRC. He joined the Group in 2000.

XU WENSHENG

Mr. Xu, aged 44, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from the Dalian University of Technology with a bachelor
degree in computer science and engineering. Mr. Xu is also a director
of HSL. Prior to joining the Group in 2003, Mr. Xu was the president
of a system integration company and has extensive experience in
computer systems integration of the financial industry.
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Directors and Senior Management

LI WENJIN

Mr. Li, aged 49, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from Peking University in the PRC with a master degree in
law. He has over 20 years of experience in investment and
administrative affairs. Mr. Li is also a director of HSL. Prior to joining
HSL in 1999, he had worked for several companies in the PRC and
Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 2000. Mr. Li has also been
appointed as an executive director of PAX Global Technology
Limited, an associated corporation of the Company, since 24
February 2010.

XU CHANG JUN

Mr. Xu, aged 46, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from Peking University in the PRC with a master degree in
international economics. Prior to joining the Group in 2001, Mr. Xu
had worked for several companies in the PRC and Hong Kong. He
has over 20 years of experience in corporate management of
enterprises in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Non-Executive Director

CHANG KAI-TZUNG, RICHARD

Mr. Chang, aged 58, is a Non-Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Chang graduated from the University of Texas at Austin with a
bachelor degree in Statistics and Operations Research. Mr. Chang
possesses more than 17 years of experience in electronic payments
industry in Southeast Asia, Japan and the Great China. Mr. Chang is
currently the Senior Executive, Global Clients APCEMEA of VISA Inc.
(“VISA”) in Singapore. He was previously VISA’s Greater China
General Manager, Japan General Manager, and senior country
manager for Singapore, Thailand, the Philippines and Indochina. He
joined the Group in 2009.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

TAM CHUN FAI

Mr. Tam, aged 50, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy. Mr. Tam is a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member
of Chartered Financial Analyst and has over 20 years’ experience in
auditing, corporate advisory services as well as financial management
and compliance work. Mr. Tam is currently an executive director of
Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (a major red chip company) and
an independent non-executive director of KWG Property Holding
Limited, both companies are listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in 2004.
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LEUNG WAI MAN, ROGER

Mr. Leung, aged 56, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company. He obtained a bachelor degree in Law and a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong. He also
obtained a Juris Doctor degree from the University of Western
Ontario, Canada. Mr. Leung has been a practicing solicitor in Hong
Kong since 1984 and is now a partner of the law firm, Messrs Foo,
Leung & Yeung. He was also admitted as a solicitor in England and
Wales and as a barrister, solicitor and notary public in Ontario,
Canada. Mr. Leung has extensive working experience in law both in
Hong Kong and in Canada. He served as a member of the Inland
Revenue Board of Review from 1997 to 2005 and has been appointed
as a China-appointed Attesting Officer since January 2003. Mr. Leung
is currently an independent non-executive director of China Flavors
and Fragrances Company Limited, a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in 2004.

XU SITAO

Mr. Xu, aged 49, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company. He graduated from Peking University in the PRC with a
bachelor of arts degree in economics and from the University of
Connecticut with a master of arts degree in economics. He also holds
a master of science degree in Finance from Boston College. Mr. Xu is
currently the chief representative of china of the Economist Group
and a director of Advisory Services (China) of Economist Intelligence
Unit. Prior to joining the Economist Group, he was a senior
economist at Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
in Hong Kong from May 2003 to May 2004 and was the chief asian
economist of Societe Generale from September 2000 to November
2002. Between 1996 and 2000, he was a regional treasury economist
at Standard Chartered Bank. Prior to that, he was an emerging asia
economist of Standard & Poor’s MMS International in Singapore. He
joined the Group in 2001.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, Mr. Li Xiaoguang, Mr.
Xiao Chang Xing, Mr. Zhao Yue Hui and Ms. Hui Lok Yan were the
Company’s senior management.

LI XIAOGUANG

Mr. Li, aged 50, is the chairman of Beijing Hi Sunsray Information
Technology Limited. He graduated from Peking University in the PRC
with a master’s degree in Computer Science. Prior to joining the
Group in 2000, Mr. Li was a member of a company’s senior
management in Beijing. He has over 20 years of experience in
corporate management.

XIAO CHANG XING

Mr. Xiao, aged 40, is the chairman of Beijing Hi Sun Advanced
Business Solutions Information Technology Limited. He graduated
from Peking University in the PRC with a bachelor degree in
Economics. Prior to joining the Group in 2000, Mr. Xiao was a
president assistant of Beijing Founder Order Computer System Co.,
Ltd. He has over 15 years of experience in corporate management.

ZHAO YUE HUI

Mr. Zhao, aged 48, is the chief executive officer of Hangzhou PAX
Electronic Technology Limited. He graduated from Zhejiang
University with a bachelor degree in engineering, and received a
master degree in engineering from Tongji University. He has over 12
years of experience in corporate management. He joined the Group
in 2000.

HUI LOK YAN

Ms. Hui, aged 34, is the Group Financial Controller and Joint
Company Secretary of the Company. She graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in Business
Administration. Ms. Hui is currently a certified public accountant of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to
joining the Group in 2007, she was a manager of an international
public accountancy firm.
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Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to present Hi Sun’s Annual Report for the year ended 31
December 2012 (“the Year”).

While economy in China continued to improve in 2012, our payment
solutions segment was still awaiting for the building up of transaction
volume and operation scale while electronic power meter and
solutions segment was facing increased competition in the market.
During the year, segmental EBITDA loss (before unallocated items)
totaled HK$134.1 million as compared to segmental EBITDA loss
(before unallocated items) of HK$270.1 million in 2011; while loss
for the year totaled HK$174.5 million as compared to a loss of
HK$279.7 million in 2011. Such declines were mainly due to a one-
time non-cash impairment charge of HK$154.8 million against the
Group’s carrying value of certain intangible assets of the payment
solutions segment in 2011.

During the Year, the telecommunication solutions segment recorded
turnover of HK$167.3 million, a decline of 6% as compared to 2011.
Segmental operating profit amounted to HK$5.3 million as compared
to HK$11.7 million in 2011. The decline in operating profit was
mainly attributable to certain expenses incurred in 2012 of which the
recognition of the related revenue is still subject to final acceptance
by our customers. We anticipate that the provision of nationwide IVR
platform and related services to China Mobile will continue to be one
of the major revenue contributors of this segment while certain new
businesses such as animation and comics and other communication
platforms are generating new additional income to the Group in
2013.

The financial solutions segment reported turnover of HK$248.1
million in 2012, an increase of 39% as compared to last year.
Segmental operating profit amounted to HK$3.3 million as compared
to HK$0.2 million in 2011. Increase in turnover and operating profit
is given to our persistent assertion of creating more stable, sustainable
and recurring income streams and development projects on cross-
industry solutions in prior years, together with more effective control
measures adopted. Looking forward, we will be able to extend our
edge from core systems to third party payment solutions and other
outsourcing services opportunities.
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Currently, our payment solutions segment is engaged in the operation
and development of the first nation-wide mobile payment platform
and solution with China Mobile and also providing other payment
solutions and services. During the year, payment solutions segment
recorded turnover of HK$146.3 million, an increase of 203% as
compared to 2011. Segmental operating loss amounted to HK$100.5
million as compared to HK$251.8 million in 2011. The decrease in
operating loss was mainly attributable to a one-time non-cash
impairment charge of HK$154.8 million against the carrying value of
certain intangible assets in 2011. We expect that we will benefit from
the China Mobile’s continuous input into its mobile payment business
and the remarkable growth of the third party payment industry.

Year 2012 was a year of challenges to our electronic power meter
and solutions segment, while its performance was adversely impacted
by the fact that the shipment was lower than anticipated and a one-
time non-cash impairment charge of HK$24.6 million against the
goodwill, which reflects a prudent conservative management
judgment. Segmental turnover decreased 33% to HK$279.4 million,
while segmental operating loss increased by 19%, to HK$69.5
million. Our management team will continue to implement various
measures to achieve better operational efficiency.

Combined with our strong financial position, management will
remain focused on financial and operational disciplines and take
hold of various opportunities for the Group’s business growth in
2013.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my utmost gratitude to our customers, bankers, suppliers,

business associates and most valued shareholders for their continuous
trust and support to the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2013

Letter from the Board
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS BT
2012 2011 Change
—E——fF —E——4F e
HK$’000 HK$'000 +/(-)
THER FHET
RESULTS ES:
Revenue g A 868,306 838,674 +4%
Gross profit EAR 244,290 174,195 +40%
Segmental EBITDA (before HFAEBITDA (FIBR AR 9 B
unallocated items) IEH A (134,052) (270,057) -50%
Share of profit of an associated JEh — Rl 8 2 R Al
company 73,616 77,809 5%
Loss for the year FABE (174,497) (279,722) -38%
Loss attributable to: FE(HES1E -
— Equity holders of the Company ~ —AAQRE=RIFTE A (160,763) (255,493) -37%
— Non-controlling interests — JEPEpR RS (13,734) (24,229) —43%
(174,497) (279,722)
Loss per share for loss attributable Z< Bz iEH AEG HK$ per share  HK$ per share
to the equity holders of the EEzSRER: BRET BB
Company:
Basic and diluted loss ERREAR R #EEE
per share (0.060) (0.096) -38%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BOLRG Z wk i 5L 23 By

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H

2012 2011 Change
—E——fF T BE)
HK$’000 HK$'000 +(-)

THER FAT

HIGHLIGHTS OF B AR R E
FINANCIAL POSITION

Total equity RERAETR 2,681,385 2,939,042 9%
Net current assets B EFE 945,471 1,288,642 —27%
Total assets BEME 3,192,299 3,392,509 6%
2012 2011 Change
—E-=F —F——F )]
HK$ per share  HKS$ per share +/(-)

BRET BRAT
Net assets per share BREERE 1.003 1.099 9%

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Hi Sun Technology (China) Rl (B ARAT((AAREEe ([E
Limited (the “Company”) hereby announces the audited consolidated =& )@ AGARARREMNB AR ([AEH])
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year #Hz-—Z——F+-_A=+—H I FEILEHEZ
ended 31 December 2012 together with the comparative figures for 44 %4  EREBEZEZ-_E——F+=-A=+—H
the year ended 31 December 2011. The annual results have been  |FEEF 7 &EH T - 2 ELEDLHARQTBZ
reviewed by the Company’s Audit Committee (the “Audit ZEe([ZEZZ8e)) &Y -

Committee”).
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BOLRG Z wk i 5L 23 By

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT GRS WER
Turnover EBITDA
B EBITDA
2012 2011 Change 2012 2011 Change
- _T—F 2% —T--—F —T——F &
HK$'000 HK$'000 +/(-) HK$'000 HK$'000 +/(-)
THER THET THERT THET
Telecommunication solutions BARRTE 167,269 177,204 -6% 16,656 20,855 -20%
Financial solutions SRR FE 251,533 212,079 +19% 8,792 16,603 —47%
Payment solutions XBRA R 148,167 48,493 +206% (91,733)  (239,526) -62%
Electronic power meters and BRI EEMNX
solutions RRAE 279,365 419,149 -33% (57,286) (43,900) +30%
Others Hib 27,252 15,881 +72% (10,481) (24,089) -56%
Segmental results DEERE 873,586 872,806 0%  (134,052)  (270,057) -50%
Less: Inter-segment turnover W HBREESE (5,280)  (34,132) -85% - - N/A/RER
Total &t 868,306 838,674 +4% (134,052)  (270,057) -50%
Depreciation neE (33,614) (39,419 -15%
Amortisation B (7,567) (16,078) -53%
Segmental operating loss DRRERE (175,233)  (325,554) -46%
Unallocated other income A EE KA 8,934 3,052 +193%
Unallocated corporate expenses A2 B HEMAY (81,382) (41,042) +98%
Share of profit of an it —gERRZ
associated company pingl 73,616 77,809 -5%
Finance costs AR A (1,295) (1,796) -28%
Loss before income tax BT SR AIE R (175,360)  (287,531) -39%
Income tax credit FEHE % 863 7,809 -89%
Loss for the year FEREIE (174,497)  (279,722) -38%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group focused on
four key business segments being telecommunication solutions,
financial solutions, payment solutions and electronic power meters
and solutions. The consolidated turnover amounted to HK$868.3
million, representing an increase of 4% over 2011. Segmental
operating loss totaled HK$175.2 million as compared to a segmental
operating loss of HK$325.6 million in 2011. Loss for the year totaled
HK$174.5 million as compared to a loss of HK$279.7 million in
2011, which was mainly due to a decline in operating loss from the
payment solutions business for the year ended 31 December 2012
while there was a one-time non-cash impairment charge of HK$154.8
million in 2011.

With regard to our balance sheet, the total assets as at 31 December
2012, amounted to HK$3,192.3 million, compared with HK$3,392.5
million as at 31 December 2011. As at 31 December 2012 net
current assets amounted to HK$945.5 million, compared with
HK$1,288.6 million as at 31 December 2011.

KEY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

On 13 January 2012, the Company entered into two sale and
purchase agreements with two vendors separately pursuant to which
each of the vendors has conditionally agreed to sell, and the
Company has conditionally agreed to purchase, in aggregate, 20% of
the issued share capital of New Concept Services Limited (“New
Concept”) at a total consideration of HK$96,000,000. Upon
completion, the Company’s shareholding interest in New Concept
increased from 80% to 100% and accordingly, New Concept became
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The acquisition was
completed on 9 March 2012.

On 25 January 2013, the Company received an exercise notice from
the preference shareholder (the “SBL Preference Shareholder”) of
Success Bridge Limited (“Success Bridge”), a subsidiary of the
Company, to exercise in full their rights under the shareholders
agreement dated 29 January 2010 entered among the Company,
Success Bridge, and the SBL Preference Shareholder to exchange all
preference shares and ordinary shares of Success Bridge (that have
arisen from the conversion of the preference shares of Success Bridge)
registered in their names for 103,404,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company (the “Shares”) at the exchange price of HK$4.5 per Share.
As at the date of the exercise notice, the SBL Preference Shareholder
held 900 preference shares of Success Bridge. The SBL Preference
Shareholder did not hold any ordinary share of Success Bridge. Upon
completion, Success Bridge became a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. The transaction was completed on 31 January 2013.
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KEY BUSINESS OPERATIONS

The performance of the four key business segments during the year is
set out as below:

Telecommunication solutions

Turnover BER
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating profit =gl

During the year, the telecommunication solutions segment recorded
turnover of HK$167.3 million, a decline of 6% as compared to 2011.
Segmental operating profit amounted to HK$5.3 million as compared
to HK$11.7 million in 2011. The decline in operating profit was
mainly contributed by certain expenses incurred in 2012 of which
the recognition of the related revenue is still subject to final
acceptance by our customers. While certain new businesses such as
mobile games, animation and other communication platforms are
still under development, we anticipate that the provision of
nationwide IVR platform and related services to China Mobile will
continue to be one of the major revenue contributors of this segment
and year 2013 will continue to be a challenging year. Looking ahead,
we will continue to develop other innovative wireless value-added
solutions and services to meet the ever changing technology and
market demand.

Financial solutions

Turnover* B
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating profit =gl

* Turnover from external customers

* RESNEEP ZEEE

TEREXER

FAMAZZEB OB ZRBAMD

EMBRT R

2012 2011 Change
—F—=F —F—F )
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)

FET TET
167,269 177,204 —6%
16,656 20,855 —20%
5,288 11,678 -55%

FRN EABMAITEDEHBEEER
167,300,0008 7T - M—_F——F /ML 6% - P4
4R 7 &5,300,00008 0 —FE——F A A
11,700,000 7L ° K& BF B L ETZHR T
——HFEERTIE  ESEPREEMNT
REBRN - BEFHEE - B REME
TaSETHEBDEERBE  BMEFAF
EZE R EEIVRT & RBMRGSEENK A
Az EBZWARRE — ZE—=FNiEL
FEMPER —F - BEAR  RPGEEERE
MBI - BRIGEBRTRLERS - BROED
B E B ERmSHR

ERBRE R
2012 2011 Change
- —F——%F g2
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)

FET TET

248,112 178,077 +39%
8,792 16,603 —47%
3,302 194 +1,602%
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The financial solutions segment reported turnover of HK$248.1
million in 2012, an increase of 39% as compared to last year.
Segmental operating profit amounted to HK$3.3 million as compared
to HK$0.2 million in 2011. During the year, commercial banks in
The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) continue to increase their
systemic investment in electronic channels infrastructure and
accelerate the building of overseas branch network. Increase in
turnover and operating profit is given to our persistent assertion of
creating more stable, sustainable and recurring income streams and
development projects on cross-industry solutions in prior years,
together with more effective control measures adopted.

Payment solutions

Turnover* —EXh
Impairment of intangible assets BIVEERE
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating loss L g R

*  Turnover from external customers

* OREINPRF ZEEE

Segmental turnover amounted to HK$146.3 million, an increase of
203% as compared to last year. Segmental operating loss amounted
to HK$100.5 million, a decrease of 60% as compared to 2011, which
was mainly attributable to a one-time non-cash impairment charge of
HK$154.8 million against the Group’s carrying value of certain
intangible assets last year. During the year, we have dedicated
substantial investment in various innovative payment-related
value-added services and solutions at their preliminary development
stages and significant increase in segmental headcounts. Currently,
our payment solutions segment is awaiting for the building up of
transaction volume and operation scale.

Electronic power meters and solutions

Turnover 3
Impairment of intangible assets EZEERE
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating loss L g R
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During the year ended 31 December 2012, segmental turnover
amounted to HK$279.4 million, a decrease of 33% as compared with
2011. Segmental operating loss totaled HK$69.5 million compared
with HK$58.2 million in 2011. Decline in segmental turnover was
mainly due to total product shipment being lower than anticipated
given the increased competition in the market. Increase in segmental
operating loss was mainly caused by a one-time non-cash impairment
charge of HK$24.6 million against the goodwill of our electronic
power meters and solutions business, which reflects a prudent
conservative management judgment with regard to the rapid
evolution of business models in the industry and the current
economic environment during the year.

OUTLOOK

Telecommunication solutions

China Mobile’s IVR business has been successfully transitioned to the
Jiangsu Base of China Mobile since 1 January 2012, mainly providing
audio-oriented integrated services. We have been honored as an
excellent partner to the Jiangsu Mobile in 2012. We upgraded our
IVR platform step by step into WAVE (Web Audio Video Engine)
platform in 2012, which provides integrated services including audio,
data, video and web contents. With the application of the platform
getting mature, it is expected that more business revenue could be
generated effectively. In addition, by increasing the number of mobile
operational systems from 4 to 13, we have achieved significant
expansion for the cooperation with the Animation and Comic Station
Base, and further consolidated our supporting role for the future
mobile colour image business. As for our innovation work, we have
developed a cloud communication platform, which is expected to
commence services in 2013. Such business is mainly used for
providing a standard interface for the application developers, so as to
enhance their communication services and reduce their development
and usage cost. In addition to VOIP (VOICE ON IP) communication
and VOIP fixed-line communication which are currently available,
we also expect to provide video and conference call services in the
future. Currently, we have been conducting trial operation with
certain customers, including internet companies and mobile phone
manufacturers.

HE-_Z——H+-A=1+—HItFE HEL
¥ % 5279,400,0008 7L M _ZT——F R
33% ° DAL EBES £569,500,000% 7T+ =
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Financial solutions

In 2013, network virtualisation, market-oriented pricing and service
differentiation of the banks in the PRC are expected to be the trend of
development, which will drive the banks to continuously update their
IT system. Our core banking system, together with other banking
solutions with competitive edge will be able to meet the market
demands. Therefore, we have successfully signed contracts with the
high-end quality customers from Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau. Fueled by the subsequent cooperation, we expect a stable
growth in market share. In the financial payment area, by integrating
banking and internet concepts, our integrated payment platform has
been successfully applied to various third-party payment companies
and has become one of the leading third-party payment solution
providers in the industry. It is anticipated that income from financial
payment and its related business will further increase. As for the
outsourcing operation, as various banks in Mainland China started to
develop their retail banking business and devoted more resources to
electronic channels such as ATM and emerging smart banking,
business opportunities of outsourcing services will emerge and the
economies of scale will be further demonstrated at a later stage of
operation.

Payment solutions

Following the issuance of the third-party payment licences to nearly
200 companies, including China Mobile, by the People’s Bank of
China from mid-2011 to 2012, the payment market in Mainland
China has been showing a rapid growth momentum. China Mobile’s
mobile payment business achieved considerable development due to
its investment in its electronic business in 2012. Being an important
supporting role to China Mobile’s overall mobile payment business,
we provide supporting services for the software development, system
operation and maintenance and expansion of mobile payment
businesses. We have successfully accomplished various milestone
and received positive feedback. Looking forward in 2013, backed by
the expected rapid development of the third-party payment market
and China Mobile’s further investment in its mobile payment
business, we will continue to generate revenues and returns.
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Electronic power meters and solutions

During the “Twelfth Five-year” period, the smart grid construction
has been fully commenced in the PRC, with an aim to achieve “full
coverage, full collection and full cost-control” management of its
users. As an important part of the smart grid construction, the
development of smart meters and electricity information collection
systems has been facing valuable opportunities. In line with the
accelerating pace of urbanization, the number of new users will also
increase. Smart grid reconstruction works have commenced gradually
in the rural areas, and therefore the demand for related equipment
will significantly increase. Following the implementation of the
provincial and municipal tiered pricing policies, coupled with the
vast demand generated by equipment upgrade and replacement, the
market in the PRC is expected to flourish in the next few years. On
the other hand, many developing countries and developed countries
have been constructing, upgrading and replacing their equipment for
their smart grids. There is expected to be a strong market demand as
a result of the substantial growth in the smart meters and electricity
information collection systems. As such, the Group will keep up with
the market demand, actively expand its sales channel, accelerate its
pace of R&D, enhance the production quality and shorten the lead
time of new products in order to increase its market share.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group reported total assets of
HK$3,192.3 million (2011: HK$3,392.5 million), which were
financed by total liabilities of HK$510.9 million (2011: HK$453.5
million) and equity of HK$2,681.4 million (2011: HK$2,939.0
million). The net asset value was HK$2,681.4 million (2011:
HK$2,939.0 million). Net assets per share amounted to HK$1.003 as
at 31 December 2012 as compared to HK$1.099 per share as at 31
December 2011.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of HK$794.2 million (2011: HK$1,167.2 million) and no short term
borrowings (2011: HK$23.4 million). The net cash position as at 31
December 2012 was HK$794.2 million as compared to HK$1,143.8
million as at 31 December 2011. The gearing ratio (defined as total
borrowings divided by shareholders’ equity) was zero compared to
0.8% as at 31 December 2011. The gearing ratio is considered
healthy and suitable for the continued growth of the Group’s
business.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND DETAILS OF CHARGES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no bank borrowings (2011:
RMB19 million, equivalent to HK$23.4 million) and had banking
facilities of RMB18 million, equivalent to HK$22.4 million (2011:
RMB18 million, equivalent to HK$22.3 million). The bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2011 were charged at an interest rate
of 7.544% per annum. As at 31 December 2012, the banking
facilities were secured by the leasehold land and buildings of a
subsidiary of the Company, with a net book amount of HK$3.6
million and HK$14.9 million, respectively. As at 31 December 2011,
the bank borrowings and banking facilities were secured by the
leasehold land and buildings of the subsidiaries of the Company, with
a net book amount of HK$10.9 million and HK$27.8 million,
respectively.

Approximately HK$262.5 million, HK$238.1 million, HK$165.4
million, HK$123.4 million, HK$0.2 million and HK$4.6 million of
the Group’s cash balances were denominated in Renminbi, Hong
Kong dollar, US dollar, Japanese yen and Euro and Macanese pataca
(“MOP”) respectively as at 31 December 2012.

Approximately HK$417.6 million, HK$298.9 million, HK$327.8
million, HK$122.7 million and HK$0.2 million of the Group’s cash
balances were denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollar, US
dollar, Japanese Yen and Euro respectively as at 31 December 2011.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group has no significant
investment held as at 31 December 2012.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group does not have any
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or associates during
the year ended 31 December 2012.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no specific plan for
material investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2012.
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EXCHANGE RATES EXPOSURE

The Group derives its revenue, makes purchases, incurs expenses
and has its assets and liabilities denominated mainly in US dollars,
Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and Japanese Yen. Currently, the
Group has not entered into agreements or purchased instruments to
hedge the Group’s exchange rate risks. Any material fluctuation in
the exchange rates of Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi or Japanese Yen
may have an impact on the operating results of the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liability as at 31 December
2012.

EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December
2012 was 2,598. The breakdown of employees by division is as
follows:

B == /& By
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52,598 A o EEIZEPIMED AT ¢

Telecommunication solutions BRARTT 2 429
Financial solutions TRUBRTT R 564
Payment solutions AR R 710
Electronic power meters and solutions BRI EEMMBRTTR 777
Others Hib 82
Corporate office 4 g 36

2,598

The Group ensures that its remuneration packages are comprehensive
and competitive. Employees are remunerated with a fixed monthly
income plus annual performance related bonuses. The Group
operates a share option scheme and an employees’ incentive scheme,
the details of which are set out in the Report of the Directors. The
Group also sponsors selected employees to attend external training
courses that suit the needs of the Group’s businesses.

Disclaimer:
Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles) measures, such
as EBITDA, are used for assessing the Group’s performance. These non-GAAP
measures are not expressly permitted measures under GAAP in Hong Kong
and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures for other companies.
Accordingly, such non-GAAP measures should not be considered as an
alternative to operating income as an indicator of the operating performance
of the Group or as an alternative to cash flows from operating activities as a
measure of liquidity. The use of non-GAAP measures is provided solely to
enhance the overall understanding of the Group current financial
performance. Additionally because the Group has historically reported certain
non-GAAP results to investors, the Group considers the inclusion of non-
GAAP measures provides consistency in our financial reporting.
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in
the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board in
ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company and
transparency and accountability of all operations.

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identifying and formulating corporate
governance practices appropriate to the Company’s needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles (the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The Board has approved the
adoption of the revised CG Code which came into effect from 1 April
2012.

The Company has in formulating its corporate governance practices
applied the Principles and complied with all of the Code Provisions
for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Board periodically reviews and monitors the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance or compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements. The Board also reviews the employee
handbook, training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management, to ensure that the operations are
conducted in accordance with the standards of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Specific enquiry had been made to all the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) and the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2012.

The Company has also established written guidelines with exact
terms at set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Company.
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The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All
Directors should make decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company
which include the approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors are provided with full and timely access to board papers
and relevant information as well as the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon
making of a request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to
be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the senior management officers.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to discharge
its responsibilities.

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and
experience appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Company and to the exercising of independent judgement.

The Board currently comprises 9 members, consisting of 5 Executive
Directors, 1 Non-Executive Director and 3 Independent Non-
Executive Directors.
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The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Cheung Yuk Fung (Chairman)

Kui Man Chun (Chief Executive Officer)
Xu Wensheng

Li Wenjin

Xu Chang Jun

Non-Executive Director:
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Tam Chun Fai

Leung Wai Man, Roger

Xu Sitao

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time.

The biographical information of the Directors and their relationship
among the members of the Board, if any, are provided in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual report.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Company has established formal and transparent procedures for
the appointment and succession planning of Directors.

Code provision A.4.1 of CG Code on Corporate Governance
Practices stipulates that Non-Executive Director should be appointed
for a specific term subject to re-election. The Non-Executive Director
and Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a
contracted term of one year subject to renewal on a yearly basis and
subject to re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws.

All Directors are appointed for specific tenures which shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and subject
to re-election.

Code provision A.4.3 of CG Code on Corporate Governance
Practices which came into effect from 1 April 2012 stipulates that
serving more than 9 years could be relevant to the determination of
the independence of an Independent Non-Executive Director. If an
Independent Non-Executive Director has served for more than 9
years, his further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders.
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Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has an
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company. Besides, the Company will arrange and fund suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and
duties of its Directors.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has arranged in-house trainings for the Directors in the
form of seminar and provision of training materials. A summary of
training received by the Directors during the relevant period
according to the records provided by the Directors is as follows:

Name of Directors BEE=E
Executive Directors: BITEE:
Cheung Yuk Fung REE

Kui Man Chun RBEH

Xu Wensheng (Ee:s

Li Wenjin BNE

Xu Chang Jun wEE
Non-Executive Director: HHITEE
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard RIEE
Independent Non-Executive Directors: ~ BV HEHITEE :
Tam Chun Fai B IE
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER

Xu Sitao FrEE

B3
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Al - RIFEFRF ZRE  ESRNHEMEER
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Training on

corporate governance

regulatory development

and other relevant topics
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Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Regular Board meetings were held four times during the year for
reviewing and approving the financial and operating performance,
for approving the final results for the year ended 31 December 2011,
interim results for the period ended 30 June 2012 and considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.

The individual attendance record of each Director at the four regular
quarterly meetings of the Board (not including other ad hoc meetings
of the Board held from time to time), Audit Committee meetings,
Nomination Committee meeting, Remuneration Committee meeting,
Independent Board Committee meeting and general meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out below:
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Audit Nomination
Committee  Committee
Meetings Meeting
ENEEE REZEES

Name of Directors Esps a3 23
Cheung Yuk Fung REIE N/A N/A
TEA TER
Kui Man Chun RER N/A N/A
NEm TER
Xu Wensheng "X N/A N/A
TEA TER
Li Wenjin EXE N/A 171
TERA
Xu Chang Jun ®BEE N/A N/A
i TER
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard RHZ N/A N/A
TEA TER
Tam Chun Fai EiRE 22 17
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER 2/2 11
Xu Sitao FFEE 2/2 N/A

NEH

BRUEBITREY
Independent
Remuneration Board Regular
Committee ~ Committee Board General
Meeting Meeting Meetings Meetings
¥HMZEEE BUES wH

8% ZEg883 EIFEEE RRAE
N/A N/A 4/4 2/2

TEM NEM
N/A N/A 4/4 12

TER N
N/A N/A 4/4 1/2

TER NEH
171 N/A 4/4 212

N
N/A N/A 4/4 2/2

NiEm NiER
N/A N/A 4/4 1/2

TER NEH
11 11 4/4 2/2
171 1”71 4/4 172
N/A 1”71 4/4 2/2
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings
Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised of the
latest developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and individual
Directors also have separate and independent access to the senior
management whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary attends all regular Board meetings and when
necessary, other Board and committee meetings to advise on business
developments, financial and accounting matters, statutory
compliance, corporate governance and other major aspects of the
Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep the minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable
time after each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s Bye-laws also contain
provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in
which such Directors or any of their associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) have a material interest.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the year, Mr. Cheung Yuk Fung acted as the
Chairman, and Mr. Kui Man Chun acted as the Chief Executive
Officer.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate
governance practice. With the support of the Company Secretary and
the senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring
that the Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate information,
which must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable and appropriate
briefing on issues arising at Board meetings, and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

The role of the Chief Executive focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He is in
charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and operations.
The Chief Executive is also responsible for developing strategic plans
and formulating the organisational structure, control systems and
internal procedures and processes for the Board’s approval.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent Non-Executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. By taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving on Board
committees, all Independent Non-Executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board at all times met
the requirements of Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-
Executive Directors with at least one Independent Non-Executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-Executive Director of his independence pursuant to
the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, which confirmed
to the Company that he has met the independence guidelines set out
in the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Company considers the
Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 3 committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees are established with defined written terms of reference.
The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are
available to Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
Independent Non-Executive Directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee as at the date of this report is
set out below:

Audit Committee

Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)
Leung Wai Man, Roger
Xu Sitao

Nomination Committee

Leung Wai Man, Roger (Chairman)
Tam Chun Fai

Li Wenjin

Remuneration Committee
Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)
Leung Wai Man, Roger

Li Wenjin

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors (including one Independent Non-Executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise). None of the members of the
Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditor.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@)  To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant
or external auditor before submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the external auditor, its fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditor.

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2012 to review the financial results and reports, financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control system and
risk management review and processes and the reappointment of the
external auditor.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

There is no different view taken by the Audit Committee from the
Board regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of external auditor.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2012
has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, developing and
formulating relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors, and assessment of the
Independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
requirements of the business of the Group and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may
be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process when
necessary. The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2012.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2), Mr. Kui
Man Chun, Executive Director of the Company, Mr. Chang Kai-
Tzung, Richard, Non-Executive Director of the Company, and Mr.
Leung Wai Man, Roger, Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company, will retire at the Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election. As Mr. Leung Wai Man,
Roger would have served the Company as an Independent Non-
Executive Director since September 2004 for more than 9 years
during the term of his further appointment in 2013 and therefore, in
accordance with Code Provision A.4.3 of Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, Mr. Leung Wai Man, Roger will also voluntarily retire at the
Annual General Meeting in any event and his re-election shall be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by Shareholders.

In accordance with Code Provision A.4.3 of Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, Mr. Tam Chun Fai would also have served the
Company as an Independent Non-Executive Director since May 2004
for more than 9 years during the term of his further appointment in
2013. Accordingly, Mr. Tam Chun Fai will voluntarily retire at the
Annual General Meeting and his appointment shall be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by Shareholders pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the Directors
standing for re-election at the 2013 annual general meeting of the
Company.

The Company’s circular dated 25 March 2013 contains detailed
information of the Directors standing for re-election.
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Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages of the Directors and the
senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any
of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual
remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management
and other related matters. The Human Resources Department is
responsible for collection and administration of the human resources
data and making recommendations to the Remuneration Committee
for consideration. The Remuneration Committee shall consult the
Chairman and/or the Board about these recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages. The
Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31
December 2012.

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5, the remuneration of the members
of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December
2012 is set out below:
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties of the Company, including (i) to develop and review the
Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance; (ii) to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management and (iii) to
review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2012.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 49 to 52.

INTERNAL CONTROL

For the internal control system of the Company, the Board has
developed the Group’s internal control systems and risk assessment
and management. The Board has overall responsibility for reviewing
and maintaining an adequate and effective internal control system to
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the assets of the
Group. During the year, the Board has conducted reviews of the
internal control system and considered the internal control system of
the Group has been implemented effectively.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company in
respect of audit services for the year ended 31 December 2012
amounted to approximately HK$2,600,000. There was no non-audit
service provided by the external auditor of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2012.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

(@

(b)

(9]

Procedures for requisitioning a special general meeting
Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right to vote at general meetings of the Company
may, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary(ies) signed and deposited in accordance with the
bye-laws of the Company, Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
require the Directors to call a special general meeting for the
transaction of business specified in the requisition.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meetings
Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company or not less than 100 Shareholders
may, at their expense, provide a written request to the attention
of the Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited in
accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 to put
forward proposals at general meeting.

Communication with shareholders and investors

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum of
communication between Shareholders and the Board.
Shareholders are welcome to put forward enquiries to the
Board or the management thereat and the Chairman of the
Board, or in his absence, an Executive Director of the
Company, as well as chairmen of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, or in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, and
where applicable, the Independent Board Committee, will be
commonly be present and available to answer questions and
Shareholders may also contact the Company Secretary(ies) to
direct their written enquires.
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The Company is committed to enhancing communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains an open dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.

The Company also maintains a website at www.hisun.com.hk,
where updates on the Company’s business developments and
operations, financial information and news can always be
found.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2013
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holdings. The
principal activities of the Group are provision of telecommunication
solutions, provision of financial solutions, provision of payment
solutions and sales of electronic power meters and solutions.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 53.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2011:
Nil).

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and in note 28 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations of HK$154,000 is made by the Group
during the year (2011: HK$649,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme 2011 (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating talented
employees in order to strive for future developments and expansion
of the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme (the “Participants”)
include the Group’s full-time employees, and executive and non-
executive Directors. The Scheme became effective on 29 April 2011
and unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from that date. Further details of the
Scheme can be found in the circular of the Company dated 28 March
2011.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme, and any other share option
schemes of the Company in issue, shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the relevant class of securities of the Company in issue as at the
date of approval of the Scheme unless the Company obtains a fresh
approval from its Shareholders.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all exercised and/or outstanding options
granted to each Participant shall not in aggregate exceed 1% of the
relevant class of securities of the Company in issue in any 12-month
period. Any further grant of options in excess of the aforesaid 1%
limit shall be subject to the approval of the Shareholders of the
Company with such Participant and his/her associates abstaining
from voting.

As at the date of this report, 267,342,983 Shares were available for
issue under the Scheme.

The exercise period of the options granted is determinable by the
Directors, and such period shall commence on the date of the offer of
the options (the “Offer Date”) and expire on the last day of such
period.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised and no performance target need to be achieved
by the grantee before the options can be exercised.

A share option shall be deemed to have been accepted and to have
taken effect when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the
option duly signed by the Participant together with a remittance in
favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the
grant thereof is received by the Company.
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The exercise price of an option shall be determined at the discretion
of the Board and shall be the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the Offer Date, which must be a day on which the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in securities
(“Trading Day”); and (ii) a price being the average of the closing
prices of the Shares as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five Trading Days immediately
preceding the Offer Date; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

No share option of the Company was granted or exercised during the
year ended 31 December 2012. As at 31 December 2012, and up to
the date of this report, there was no issued and outstanding share
option under the Scheme which has not been exercised or lapsed.

EMPLOYEES’ INCENTIVE PROGRAMME

On 1 September 2011, Mega Hunt Microelectronics Limited (“Mega
Hunt Microelectronics”), an indirectly owned subsidiary of the Group
entered into six option deeds with certain directors and employees of
Mega Hunt Microelectronics and its subsidiary. 3,500,000 ordinary
shares of Mega Hunt Microelectronics may be issued upon the
exercise of all options granted under the option deeds at an exercise
price of HK$1.00 per share. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
the option deeds will remain valid and effective for the period of 36
months from 1 September 2011.

The option deeds are designed to provide incentive to the employees
towards the contribution to Mega Hunt Microelectronics. Mega Hunt
Microelectronics wishes to grant the options to the employees so as
to entitle them to subscribe for the option shares in Mega Hunt
Microelectronics.

Under the option deeds, 50% of the options shall vest upon the
expiry of a period of 12 months from the date of the option deeds;
and the balance of 50% of the options shall vest upon the expiry of a
period of 24 months from the date of the option deeds. Prior to
exercise of the option, the option holders are not entitled to
dividends. There are also no accelerated vesting rights in case of
winding of Mega Hunt Microelectronics.

Up to the date of this report, no share option is exercised under the
option deeds.

Report of the Directors

oW

BRRITEERHEFENIEESE YER TS
ZERENETHAHE R (ARBEBRMAN
BEESF<AF(XRSRA))EEMZAEAR
BERMAIIRDEHE  RBEETEHER L
TExR 5 A& BB E B REXRMIID BT
Bz¥H8: Ri) RO EE -

AR EARE-_ZTE——F+-A=+—H81t
FERHESTEERE RZ2F—Z=F+=2A
=t+—HBREEAREDR  TEREZ S
T B ARITE 2 BRI ARITEE SRR -

EERBE

RZZTE——FNA—8  AEBZEENBQF
KAMREFARAR ([IAMET ) EBIKAME
FREMNBARZETESREEFT L AHER
Y © 3,500,000 & JKFAL K E 7 X @ AR ] AR
BREREREEL ZAMTAEERBIZITEESR
1008 L EITHER T - REBEHEIIBTE
Oh - BREZEEE _E——FNA—BiE—H
BRRES - BE36EA -

BREREDARAEEMBRELURAMEFZE
BB R < KAMEFHRAIESRLBR
LA TR BRI I N F AR Z R

IRIREEARAE SR - 50% B ARE K B AR % A
Bt 12 A E MBS - 82 T 50% & ix & B
AR B BT 24 B A IEm AR E - BBIR
TR R - BRI A ABBEEIRRE Wk
AIMETBR  MEINRBEER -

BEARSE QY WEBREREBREZER
171 »



38 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Report of the Directors

H W

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2012, the Company had no reserves available for
distribution as calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) (2011: NIL). However, the Company’s share
premium account, in the amount of HK$1,157,724,000 (2011:
HK$1,157,724,000) may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws and there was no restriction relating to such rights under the
laws of Bermuda.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 164.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
sold any of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31
December 2012.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2012 and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
CHEUNG Yuk Fung
KUI Man Chun

XU Wensheng

LI Wenjin

XU Chang Jun

Non-Executive Director:
CHANG Kai-Tzung, Richard

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
TAM Chun Fai

LEUNG Wai Man, Roger

XU Sitao
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In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2),
one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company.

Mr. Kui Man Chun, Executive Director of the Company, Mr. Chang
Kai-Tzung, Richard, Non-Executive Director of the Company, and
Mr. Leung Wai Man, Roger, Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company will retire at Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election. As Mr. Leung Wai Man,
Roger would have served the Company as an Independent Non-
Executive Director since September 2004 for more than 9 years
during the term of his further appointment in 2013 and therefore, in
accordance with Code Provision A.4.3 of Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, Mr. Leung Wai Man, Roger will also voluntarily retire at the
Annual General Meeting in any event and his re-election shall be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by Shareholders.

In accordance with Code Provision A.4.3 of Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, Mr. Tam Chun Fai would also have served the
Company as an Independent Non-Executive Director since May 2004
for more than 9 years during the term of his further appointment in
2013. Accordingly, Mr. Tam Chun Fai will voluntarily retire at the
Annual General Meeting and his appointment shall be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by Shareholders pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, each of Mr. Cheung Yuk Fung, Mr. Kui
Man Chun, Mr. Li Wenjin, Mr. Xu Wensheng and Mr. Xu Chang Jun
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of
one year from 1 April 2012 and shall continue thereafter unless and
until terminated by either the Company or the Directors giving to the
other not less than a notice of three months.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the Directors had any existing or
proposed service contracts with the Company or any member of the
Group (excluding contracts expiring or determinable within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 4 to 7.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of each
Director and Chief Executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each in the Company

ESNENzER

ART - HE KB QRS EER D R ERA
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Number of shares held

s &8

Personal Corporate
interest interest Total
Name of Director BEEHS B A= AEER PR
Kui Man Chun zBE 28,650,000 617,083,636 645,733,636

(note (i) (F17 (i)
Xu Wensheng BwIE 4,566,000 - 4,566,000
Li Wenjin EVE 6,400,000 - 6,400,000
Xu Chang Jun ®REE 16,563,000 - 16,563,000
Xu Sitao HrEE 700,000 - 700,000

Note:

(i) These shares are held by Kui Man Chun through Hi Sun Limited, a company
which Kui Man Chun holds a 99.16% interest, and Rich Global Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Hi Sun Limited.

it :

(i) ZERMABERESSEBH Sun Limited( REEHE
99.16% #2527 A &) & Hi Sun Limited 2 & & [ & A &)
Rich Global Limited # 4 °
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
Directors, the chief executive of the Company nor their associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Companies.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section 336
of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2012, the Company had
been notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests and
short positions, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share
capital. These interests are in addition to those disclosed above in
respect of the Directors and Chief Executive.

Name of Shareholder

BREW HE
Rich Global Limited (“RGL")***

Hi Sun Limited (“HSL”)*** (Note 1)
(HieE1)

Mr. Kui Man Chun (Note 1)
REHREWET)

Ever Union Capital Limited (“Ever Union”)

Mr. Che Fung (Note 2)
BIESAE (KiE2)

Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited

Ms. Liu Yang (Note 3)
Bkt (K1 3)
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
ordinary shares shareholding**
EBEREAE REEZBA T DL
617,083,636(L)* 23.08%
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320,572,000(L)* 11.99%
320,572,000(L)* 11.99%
292,903,000(L) 10.96%
292,903,000(L) 10.96%
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Notes:

1 HSL has interest in the Company’s share capital by virtue of its control of 100%
shareholding in RGL, such capital were deemed interests of HSL and in turn of
Kui Man Chun through his control of 99.16% interest in HSL, in addition to his
personal interest as disclosed in the section above.

2 Mr. Che Fung is interested in the Company’s share capital by virtue of his control
of 100% shareholding in Ever Union.

3 The 292,903,000 shares were held by Atlantis Investment Management (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Atlantis Investment”) in the capacity of investment manager.
Atlantis Investment is wholly owned by Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited
(“Atlantis Capital”) which is in turn wholly owned by Liu Yang. Liu Yang and
Atlantis Capital were, therefore, deemed to be interested in such Shares which
Atlantis Investment was interested under Part XV of the SFO.

* The Letter “L” denotes a long position in shares.

o The percentage is calculated based on the total number of issued shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2012, which was 2,673,429,835 ordinary shares.

ok Mr. Kui Man Chun and Mr. Li Wenjin are directors of RGL and Mr. Kui Man
Chun, Mr. Li Wenjin and Mr. Xu Wensheng are directors of HSL which were
deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above and other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, there were no other parties who had any
interests or short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2012.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions which constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions not exempted
under Rule 14A.31 or Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules are disclosed
below. The Group has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of such
transactions.
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Acquisition of 20% shares of New Concept Services Limited

On 13 January 2012, the Company entered into a 18% sale and
purchase agreement with Rich Giant Investments Limited (the “Rich
Giant”) and 2% sales and purchase agreement with Billion Rosy
Limited (the “Billion Rosy”), both being independent third parties,
pursuant to which Rich Giant conditionally agreed to sell, and the
Company conditionally agreed to purchase, 45 shares of New
Concept Services Limited (the “New Concept”), representing 18% of
the issued share capital of New Concept, at the consideration of
HK$86,400,000, and Billion Rosy conditionally agreed to sell, and
the Company has conditionally agreed to purchase, 5 shares of New
Concept representing 2% of the issued share capital of the New
Concept at the consideration of HK$9,600,000 respectively. As Rich
Giant held 18% of the shares of New Concept, a subsidiary of the
Company, before the transaction, Rich Giant was a connected person
and the transaction was a connected transaction. The transaction was
approved by independent Shareholders in a special general meeting
held on 24 February 2012. Upon completion of the transaction, New
Concept became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The
acquisition was completed on 9 March 2012.

Issue and Disposal of Convertible Preference Shares of Success
Bridge Limited and Exercise of Exchange Rights in respect of
Convertible Preference Shares of Success Bridge Limited

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 30
December 2009 and the circular of 8 January 2010, the Company
and Wise World Group Limited (the “Subscriber”) entered into a
conditional subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”)
on 24 December 2009, pursuant to which the Company shall procure
the issue and allotment by Success Bridge Limited (“Success Bridge”)
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) of, and the Subscriber
shall subscribe for 600 preference shares of US$0.001 each in the
share capital of Success Bridge (the “SBL Preference Shares”) at a
total consideration of US$60 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$465 million) (the “Subscription”). The 600 SBL Preference Shares
represent 6.0% of the issued share capital of Success Bridge as
enlarged by the Subscription. The 600 SBL Preference Shares have
been issued on 29 January 2010.

Report of the Directors
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On 29 January 2010, the Company, the Subscriber and Success
Bridge entered into a shareholders’ agreement (the “Shareholders’
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company agreed to grant the
rights to shareholders of SBL Preference Shares (other than the
Company) (the “SBL Preference Shareholders”) to, within a prescribed
time frame, transfer to the Company all SBL Preference Shares and all
ordinary shares of Success Bridge arisen from the conversion of the
SBL Preference Shares (the “SBL Ordinary Shares”) then in issue and
held by such SBL Preference Shareholders in consideration of the
issue of new ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”) at the initial
exchange price of HK$4.5 per Share (subject to adjustments). The
Company also agreed, (i) if the audited consolidated net profit after
taxation of Success Bridge and its subsidiaries for the financial year
ending 31 December 2010 (the “2010 SBL Net Profit”) was less than
RMB450,000,000, the Company shall transfer to the SBL Preference
Shareholders such aggregate number of additional SBL Ordinary
Shares equal to up to 3% of the aggregate number of ordinary and
preference shares of Success Bridge (“SBL Shares”) in issue as at
Completion at a consideration of HK$1.00 (the “Ratchet Disposal”);
and (ii) if the 2010 SBL Net Profit was RMB500,000,000 or more, the
SBL Preference Shareholders shall transfer to the Company such
aggregate number of SBL Preference Shares and/or SBL Ordinary
Shares equal to up to 2% of the aggregate number of SBL Shares in
issue as at Completion at a consideration of HK$1.00 (the “Ratchet
Acquisition”).

Pursuant to the Shareholders” Agreement, at any time during a period
from (and including) the day falling nine months after the date of the
first issue of the SBL Preference Shares to (and excluding) the date
falling on the third anniversary thereof and subject to the number of
SBL Preference Shares then outstanding exceeding 50% in number of
the aggregate number of such SBL Preference Shares and SBL
Ordinary Shares (that have arisen on the conversion of the SBL
Preference Shares), the majority SBL Preference Shareholders may, at
their sole option, require the Company to acquire all SBL Preference
Shares then in by the SBL Preference Shareholders (other than the
Company) in consideration of the issue to the relevant SBL Preference
Shareholder or the person (not being a connected person of the
Company) designated by it of such number of new Shares to be
calculated by US$60 million (or its HK$ equivalent calculated at the
exchange rate of US$1: HK$7.7553) divided by the initial exchange
price of HK$4.5 per Share (subject to adjustments) (“Exchange
Rights”). There will be no Ratchet Disposal or Ratchet Acquisition if
the Exchange Rights are exercised in full.
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The Subscriber was wholly-owned by Hao Capital Fund I L.P.. Hao
Capital Fund Il L.P. and Hao Capital China Fund L.P. (being funds
under common control) through their wholly-owned subsidiaries
were substantial shareholders of a then subsidiary of the Company.
Accordingly, each of the Subscription, the Ratchet Disposal, the
Ratchet Acquisition, the purchase of SBL Shares on exercise of the
Exchange Rights, constituted a connected transaction of the
Company, subject to reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

As the 2010 SBL Net Profit was less than RMB375,000,000, the
Company has transferred 300 SBL Ordinary Shares (representing 3%
of the issued share capital of Success Bridge, assuming full conversion
of all SBL Preference Shares into SBL Ordinary Shares) to the SBL
Preference Shareholders in accordance with the Shareholders’
Agreement. The SBL Ordinary Shares so transferred have, upon
completion of the transfer, been re-designated into SBL Preference
Shares, the principal terms of which are set out in the circular dated 8
January 2010. The SBL Ordinary Shares transferred and re-designated
under the Ratchet Disposal are to be returned to the Company if the
volume weighted average price of the Shares exceeds HK$4.50 for a
period of thirty consecutive trading days during the period from (and
including) 29 October 2010 (being the date falling nine months
immediately following the date of Completion) up to (and excluding)
29 January 2012 (being the date falling on the second anniversary of
the date of Completion). Given that the volume weighted average
price of the shares of the Company did not exceed HK$4.50 for a
period of thirty consecutive trading days during the period from (and
including) 29 October 2010 to (but excluding) 29 January 2012, no
SBL Ordinary Shares transferred and re-designated under the Ratchet
Disposal were returned to the Company. The Company, the
Subscriber and Success Bridge entered into a supplemental agreement
to the Shareholders Agreement dated 10 June 2011 in order to
document the mechanics for such return, if any, of the SBL Ordinary
Shares. The Ratchet Disposal was completed on 10 June 2011.

On 25 January 2013, the Company received an exercise notice from
the SBL Preference Shareholders to exercise in full their rights under
the Shareholders Agreement to exchange all SBL Preference Shares
and SBL Ordinary Shares (that have arisen from the conversion of the
SBL Preference Shares) registered in their names for 103,404,000 new
Shares (the “Exchange Shares”) at the exchange price of HK$4.5 per
Share. As at the date of the exercise notice, the SBL Preference
Shareholders held 900 SBL Preference Shares. The SBL Preference
Shareholders did not hold any SBL Ordinary Shares. Upon the
issuance of the Exchange Shares on 31 January 2013, the total
number of issued shares of the Company increased from
2,673,429,835 to 2,776,833,835. The Exchange Shares represent
approximately 3.87% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company before the issue of the Exchange Shares and approximately
3.72% of the entire issued share capital of the Company as enlarged
by the Exchange Shares. Upon completion, Success Bridge became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Report of the Directors
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OTHER TRANSACTIONS DURING THE YEAR

(@)

(b)

Acquisition of 67 % shares of MS Car Credit Co., Ltd

On 2 March 2012, Merchant Support Co., Ltd, (“Merchant
Support”), a subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
conditional subscription agreement with IT Cars Co., Ltd
(“ITC”), a joint venture partner, pursuant to which conditionally
agreed to sell, and Merchant Support conditionally agreed to
purchase 67% of the issued share capital of MS Car Credit Co.,
Ltd (formerly known as ”ITC Credit Co., Ltd”) (“MSCC") at a
consideration of JPY 70 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$6.7 million). Upon completion, Merchant Support’s
shareholding interest in MSCC increased from 33% to 100%
and accordingly MSCC became a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group. The acquisition was completed on 5 March 2012.

Acquisition of t RBH ZBEERMER QR

On 27 June 2012, the Group entered into certain contractual
agreements with the registered owners of 3t A 5 @5 81
it F R 2 @l (“Ronglian”), pursuant to which the Group has
obtained 100% control of Ronglian, including 100% of its
voting rights, the power to govern its financial and operating
policies and the power to appoint or remove the majority of the
members of its board of directors at a consideration of RMB10
million (equivalent to approximately HK$12.2 million). In
addition, such contractual agreements also transfer all risks and
rewards of Ronglian’s underlying business to the Group.
Consequently, Ronglian has been accounted for as a subsidiary
of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2012.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the

Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Sales

Purchases

— the largest supplier 38%
— five largest suppliers combined 75%
— the largest customer 28%
— five largest customers combined 52%
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None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major customers or suppliers
noted above.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Exercise of Exchange Rights in respect of Convertible Preference
Shares of Success Bridge Limited

On 25 January 2013, the Company received an exercise notice from
the SBL Preference Shareholders to exercise in full their rights under
the Shareholders Agreement to exchange all SBL Preference Shares
and SBL Ordinary Shares (that have arisen from the conversion of the
SBL Preference Shares) registered in their names for 103,404,000 new
Shares (the “Exchange Shares”) at the exchange price of HK$4.5 per
Share. As at the date of the exercise notice, the SBL Preference
Shareholders held 900 SBL Preference Shares. The SBL Preference
Shareholders did not hold any SBL Ordinary Shares.

Upon the issuance of the Exchange Shares on 31 January 2013, the
total number of issued shares of the Company increased from
2,673,429,835 to 2,776,833,835. The Exchange Shares represent
approximately 3.87% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company before the issue of the Exchange Shares and approximately
3.72% of the entire issued share capital of the Company as enlarged
by the Exchange Shares. Upon completion, Success Bridge became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The related financial
impact of this transaction will be reflected within equity of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

PENSION SCHEME

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are required to participate
in a defined contribution retirement scheme of the Group or the
Company set up in accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance. Under the scheme, the employees are
required to contribute 5% of their monthly salaries up to a maximum
of HK$1,000 or HK$1,250 (effective from 1 June 2012) and they can
choose to make additional contributions. The employer’s monthly
contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries
up to a maximum of HK$1,000 or HK$1,250 (effective from 1 June
2012) (the “Mandatory Contributions”). The employees are entitled to
100% of the employer’s Mandatory Contributions upon their
retirement at the age of 65 years old, death or total incapacity.

Report of the Directors
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In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Group is required to contribute an
amount to certain retirement benefit schemes based on approximately
7% to 20% of the yearly wages of those workers in the PRC. The
local municipal government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of those workers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors have an interest in any business constituting a
competing business to the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that
the Company has maintained during the year the amount of public
float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR
The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers

who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheung Yuk Fung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2013
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 53
to 163, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2012, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Independent Auditor’s Report

¥4 1A B Vli o

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the
Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 14 March 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement

i aE R

For the year ended
31 December

BEZE+=-A=+—H
IEFE

2012 2011

—F-=F T

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

B 5T FHExT FH&T

Revenue WA 5,6 868,306 838,674
Cost of sales $HE A 7 (624,016) (664,479)
Gross profit EF 244,290 174,195
Other income H AU A 5 11,426 16,072
Other gains/(losses), net Hilezs /(E18 ) %58 5 4,221 (4,262)
Selling expenses HEFX 7 (131,475) (85,350)
Administrative expenses 1T E R 7 (351,543) (309,363)
Impairment of intangible assets W EERE 7,18 (24,600) (154,836)
Operating loss rEEE (247,681) (363,544)
Share of profit of an associated company — fEf —RH & A & 2 5 21 73,616 77,809
Finance costs b R 10 (1,295) (1,796)
Loss before income tax P8 Ei R E I8 (175,360) (287,531)
Income tax credit RCTE ) 11 863 7,809
Loss for the year FAFBE (174,497) (279,722)

The notes on pages 64 to 163 are an integral part of these ZE64E163B WA TERE 2 EF LD -

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Income Statement

B g

For the year ended
31 December
BEt-A=+-HLEE

2012 2011
—E—-C—F —E—%F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
=S FET FHET

Loss attributable to: FE(REE -
— Equity holders of the Company — RABIRESEEA (160,763) (255,493)
— Non-controlling interests — FEVERR (13,734) (24,229)
(174,497) (279,722)

HK$ per share HK$ per share

BRET BRET
Loss per share for loss attributable to the AATREZFEABEEEZ
equity holders of the Company: SREE
Basic and diluted loss per share BREARFEEEER 14 (0.060) (0.096)

The notes on pages 64 to 163 are an integral part of these

Fo4E163B 2 W TMrAMIERE 2 EFR 3D -
consolidated financial statements.

77
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Fat 4 2 i B Ak %

For the year ended
31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2012 2011
—E—-CF —T——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Loss for the year FAEE (174,497) (279,722)
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax Hib2EWE(FHia)
(MNBRBEE)
Exchange differences arising on translation of the BB BINNE R R R K
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries EXCEHERE 4,075 33,437
Fair value (loss)/gain on revaluation of BRI ESHERE
available-for-sale financial assets RFE(ER), W (2,751) 300
Share of other comprehensive income of an Y /N K )
associated company FHERE 2,717 11,728
Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax FR2HEBEAE (NRHIE) (170,456) (234,257)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: e HEE R
— Equity holders of the Company — ARFREFEA (157,432) (213,297)
— Non-controlling interests — JHER s (13,024) (20,960)
(170,456) (234,257)

The notes on pages 64 to 163 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

F64Z163 B ZMETREMBERER ZEF D
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As at 31 December

R+=H=+—H
2012 2011
—E——F —E——1F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FER FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FEREEE
Investment properties wEME 15 2,405 2,409
Property, plant and equipment M - BE &R 16 126,039 110,184
Leasehold land HE L 17 37,330 38,277
Intangible assets EREE 18 84,198 100,845
Interest in an associated company R—EsE AR s 21 1,458,419 1,373,366
Available-for-sale financial assets AHESREE 19 27,267 23,800
Long-term deposits KRS 23 2,563 2,839
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 1,738,221 1,651,720
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 22 81,310 121,752
Trade and other receivables, R LA BR 3 R H Ath R A ROE
prepayments and deposits BENFER RS 23 545,009 441,345
Amount due from an associated company &g — RSB & A A ZUE 37 42 -
Financial assets at fair value through RAFES AN GNSEEZ
profit or loss TREE 24 13,948 10,491
Short-term bank deposits g BRIRTT K 25 19,574 -
Cash and cash equivalents BEMBSEEY 26 794,195 1,167,201
Total current assets RBEELE 1,454,078 1,740,789
Total assets EEH#E 3,192,299 3,392,509
EQUITY i
Capital and reserves attributable ARAERITE AL
to the Company’s equity holders BARHE
Share capital BN 27 6,684 6,684
Reserves i 28 2,619,411 2,806,303
2,626,095 2,812,987
Non-controlling interests IR ER 55,290 126,055
Total equity A 2,681,385 2,939,042

The notes on pages 64 to 163 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

F642163 8 MG IR BHRE 2 P ED -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

AR B R B R

As at 31 December

Rt+t=—A=+—8H
2012 2011
=F-—=F —T——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FHET FET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEIBEE 31 2,307 1,320
Total non-current liabilities *FBEBEEE 2,307 1,320
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables JEAS AR R B E Atk FE A< 500R 29 498,465 423,107
Amount due to an associated company RS —EEEE A R FE 37 4,082 -
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHREE 6,060 5,595
Borrowings B 30 - 23,445
Total current liabilities REBEBEAE 508,607 452,147
Total liabilities EEEEE 510,914 453,467
Total equity and liabilities EREREEAE 3,192,299 3,392,509
Net current assets REEEFE 945,471 1,288,642
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRARBAES 2,683,692 2,940,362

The consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 163 were

approved by the Board of Directors on 14 March 2013 and were

signed on its behalf.

XU WENSHENG
®BrXE
Director

EF

The notes on pages 64 to 163 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FE3RIBE AU BREBEFETN_Z
—=FE=A1+MEHERERREE -

LI WENJIN
£ 4=
Director

EE

F642163 8 I R A T BHRE 2 P ED -
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As at 31 December

Rt+t=—A=+—H
2012 2011
—E-—F —T—F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FET FHT
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment properties REME 15 3,599 3,857
Leasehold land THE i 17 25,790 26,549
Available-for-sale financial asset AHHESREE 19 20,800 23,800
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZHE 20 851,737 755,737
Investment in an associated company R—HEBERRZKE 21 316,862 316,862
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 1,218,788 1,126,805
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables, prepayments and HAth FEUGRIE « FERTFRIA
deposits Ring 23 1,463 1,514
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUTP B A 71 FIE 20 405,678 270,552
Financial assets at fair value through ERAFEFARNREE 2
profit or loss ERMEE 24 13,948 495
Cash and cash equivalents HERRESEEY 26 4,147 255,531
Total current assets REBEERE 425,236 528,092
Total assets EEHAE 1,644,024 1,654,897
EQUITY %
Capital and reserves attributable AREERFEARERE
to the Company’s equity holders K%
Share capital A% A 27 6,684 6,684
Reserves s 28 1,059,133 1,117,422
Total equity DA 1,065,817 1,124,106

The notes on pages 64 to 163 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Fo4E163H 2T A MBIHRR 2 H P -
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Balance Sheet

s fE R

As at 31 December

Rt+t=—A=+—H
2012 2011
=F-—=F —T——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FHET FHT
LIABILITIES =R

Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables E e RIE 29 9,373 1,952
Amounts due to subsidiaries FENP B A T8 20 568,834 528,839
Total current liabilities REBBEARE 578,207 530,791
Total liabilities =Lt .t 578,207 530,791
Total equity and liabilities ERRAEERE 1,644,024 1,654,897
Net current liabilities REBEEFE 152,971 2,699
Total assets less current liabilities EELBERARBAERE 1,065,817 1,124,106

The financial statements on pages 53 to 163 were approved by the ZE53F 163 B M BEABMEEEN T — =4

Board of Directors on 14 March 2013 and were signed on its behalf. ZATHBEERERKRES -
XU WENSHENG LI WENJIN
(3¢S FXE
Director Director
BFE EF

The notes on pages 64 to 163 are an integral part of these F64E163B 2K AMBRRZEFEHD -
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

P P A R W 3

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_Z-——_F+-A=+—-HLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

ADARREEARL
Non-
Share Share  Contributed Other  Exchange  Retained ~controlling
capital ~ premium surplus  reserves reserve earnings  interests Total
2R
B BRHEE EHEH HAHRE EXRE  REERN Bi EEl
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén Tz TEx TExr TR TEnr AR TEzn
Balance at 1 January 2012 WZ8-Z5-F-Hz&H 6,084 930,020 168,434 509,536 146,289 1,052,024 126,055 2,939,042
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (160,763)  (13,734)  (174,497)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income B2 (58) /s
Exchange differences arising on translation BEEINBARNBER
of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries EEVEREE - - - - 3,388 - 687 4,075
Fair value (loss)/gain on revaluation of available-for-sale ~ EfFAIELESBEE
financial assets (Note 19) DFE(BR) e (Wi 19) - - L - - BB
Share of other comprehensive income of FlE-HRERAz A
an associated company (Note 21) SENE Wit 21) - - - - 2717 - - 2717
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2E(E8)/ hEEE - - - 6105  (160,763)  (13,024)  (170,456)
Acquisition of 20% equity interest in a W — TR B 223 20% g
subsidiary (Note 35) (Hizt35) - - - (38,257) - - G7,743)  (96,000)
Share of other reserve of an associated company Elh-REE R AhEE
(Note 21) (i) - - - - - -8
Employees' incentive programme of a subsidary —HENELAEERHEE
(Note 27 (b)) (2 27) - - - 7 - - 2 7
Balance at 31 December 2012 WZE-Z8+ZA=+-H
i 6,684 930,020 168,434 477,302 152,394 891,261 55,290 2,681,385
The notes on pages 64 to 163 are an integral part of these F64E163B ZHEIGAMBRRZEFEH -

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2011
(E-FE——F+_A=1T—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARAREHB AR

Non-

Share Share  Contributed Other ~ Exchange  Retained  controlling

capital  premium surplus— reserves reserve  earnings  interests Total
SHE

Bx BOEE EERR EURE EARE RERA L3 it
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK§'000  HK§000  HK§'000  HKS'000
TEL  TET  TET  TET  TEr  TEr  TEr  TER

Balance at 1 January 2011 WZE--F-B-Az&H 6,684 930,020 168,434 533,412 104393 1,307,517 117,346 3,167,806
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (255493) (242290 (279.722)
Other comprehensive income b2 ENE
Exchange differences arising on translation BESINELRNBER

of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries EEVERER - - - - 30,168 - 3,269 33,437
Fair value gain on revaluation of available-for-sale EfTHELECREE

financial asset (Note 19) AT (Wi 19) - - - 300 - - - 300
Share of other comprehensive income of Fl—ERENA A

an associated company (Note 21) 2ENE Wit 21) - - - - 178 - S A k]
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2HE(FB)/ WREE - - - 300 41,89 (255493 (20960  (234,257)

Transfer of additional interest of a subsidiary to

EF-RNBARTHARER

non-controlling interest 7 BEoMES - - - (26,678) - - 26,678 -
Deemed disposal of interest in a subsidiary BIEHE-HMELR B - - - 2476 - - 2,984 5,460
Employees' incentive programme of a subsidary —FENERT 2 ER Rz 2
(Note 27(b)) (Wit 27) - - - 2 - - 7 3
Balance at 31 December 2011 R=B--FtZA=1-8
i8R 6,604 930,020 168,434 509,536 146,289 1,052,024 126,055 2,939,042

The notes on pages 64 to 163 are an integral part of these F64E163B ZHEIGAMBRRZEFEHD -

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

M B eR R

For the year ended
31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2012 2011
—E-CF —ET——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
LiEs3 THET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities REXBCRERE
Cash used in operations BEmARE 32(a) (166,742) (195,169)
Overseas income tax (paid)/refunded B (X)) REESIMNTIS R (41) 6,710
Net cash used in operating activities REEBAR SRR (166,783) (188,459)
Cash flows from investing activities REFBZRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment EEE¥E « BE MR 16 (52,075) (25,222)
Purchases of intangible assets BERTVEE 18 - (132)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE - BE REE

plant and equipment FiS A 32(h) 1,248 1,358
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net cash paid WEEMT B AT  SFREIR S H 36 (7,666) (103,430)
Acquisition of 20% equity interest in Wi — R P B8 2 ) 20% AR E -

a subsidiary, net cash paid JFERR S 35 (96,000) -
Interest received =S 4,911 9,495
Proceeds from disposals of financial assets &% A FET AEH K EE

at fair value through profit or loss ZEREEMSHRIE 10,256 -
Purchases of financial assets BER AT E s R

at fair value through profit or loss L EREE (9,543) -
Net cash used in investing activities WEEE RIS R (148,869) (117,931)

The notes on pages 64 to 163 are an integral part of these F64E163B 2K AMEHRRZETEHD -
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

MRk

For the year ended
31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2012 2011
—E—-CF —T——4F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
LiEs3 FET FHET
Cash flows from financing activities METH2HESRE
Proceeds from inception of short-term RIS ERIRITE RS IR
bank loan 6,150 22,875
Repayment of short-term bank loan EERBRITER (29,352) (22,875)
Proceeds from deemed disposal of interest 18 {EH & — I B A RIS
in a subsidiary FiS A - 5,460
Interest paid ERFLE (1,295) (1,796)
(Increase)/decrease in short-term bank WERIRIT IR R (3 h0), R
deposits (19,360) 181,007
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE (FTA),/ A5
financing activities WEIFH (43,857) 184,671
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEYW 2RO BE (359,509) (121,719)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYHReMREEEY
of the year 1,167,201 1,281,616
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and cash HeRBELZEBYIEN
equivalents (B518), e (13,497) 7,304
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRASRASEEY
of the year 26 794,195 1,167,201

The notes on pages 64 to 163 are an integral part of these F64E163B 2K AMBRERZET D -

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activity of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the
“Company”) is investment holdings.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”), are principally engaged in the provision of
telecommunication solutions, provision of financial solutions,
provision of payment solutions and sales of electronic power
meters and solutions.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have
been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 14 March
2013.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“"HKICPA”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial
assets, and financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(@ New and amended standards adopted by the
Group:
There are no new and amended standards to
existing HKFRS that are effective for the
Group’s accounting year commencing 1
January 2012 that could be expected to have
a material impact on the Group.

2
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2.1

Aok 1 WA 5 0 % B ik
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted:

A number of new standards and amendments
to standards and interpretations are effective
for annual periods beginning after 1 January
2012, and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements. None
of these is expected to have a significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group, except the following set out
below:

Amendment to HKAS 1, ‘Financial statement
presentation’ regarding other comprehensive
income. The main change resulting from these
amendments is a requirement for entities to
group items presented in ‘other
comprehensive income’ (OCI) on the basis of
whether they are potentially reclassifiable to
profit or loss subsequently (reclassification
adjustments). The amendments do not address
which items are presented in OCI.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted: (Continued)

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses
the classification, measurement and
recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. HKFRS 9 was issued in November
2009 and October 2010. It replaces the parts
of HKAS 39 that relate to the classification
and measurement of financial instruments.
HKFRS 9 requires financial assets to be
classified into two measurement categories:
those measured as at fair value and those
measured at amortised cost. The
determination is made at initial recognition.
The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing its financial
instruments and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the instruments. For financial
liabilities, the standard retains most of the
HKAS 39 requirements. The main change is
that, in cases where the fair value option is
taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair
value change due to an entity’s own credit
risk is recorded in other comprehensive
income rather than the income statement,
unless this creates an accounting mismatch.
The Group is yet to assess HKFRS 9’s full
impact and intends to adopt HKFRS 9 no later
than the accounting period beginning on or
after 1 January 2015. The Group will also
consider the impact of the remaining phases
of HKFRS 9 when completed by the Board.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted: (Continued)

HKFRS 10,
statements’, builds on existing principles by
identifying the concept of control as the

‘Consolidated financial

determining factor in whether an entity should
be included within the consolidated financial
statements of the parent company. The
standard provides additional guidance to
assist in the determination of control where
this is difficult to assess. The Group is yet to
assess HKFRS 10’s full impact and intends to
adopt HKFRS 10 no later than the accounting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 12,
entities’, includes the disclosure requirements
for all forms of interests in other entities,
including joint arrangements, associates,
special purpose vehicles and other off balance

‘Disclosures of interests in other

sheet vehicles. The Group is yet to assess
HKFRS 12’s full impact and intends to adopt
HKFRS 12 no later than the accounting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted: (Continued)

HKFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’, aims to
improve consistency and reduce complexity
by providing a precise definition of fair value
and a single source of fair value measurement
and disclosure requirements for use across
HKFRS. The requirements, which are largely
aligned between HKFRS and US GAAP, do
not extend the use of fair value accounting
but provide guidance on how it should be
applied where its use is already required or
permitted by other standards within HKFRS or
US GAAP. The Group is yet to assess HKFRS
13’s full impact and intends to adopt HKFRS
13 no later than the accounting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

There are no other HKFRS or HK(IFRIC)
interpretations that are not yet effective that
would be expected to have a material impact
on the Group.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. The Group also assesses
existence of control where it does not have more
than 50% of the voting power but is able to govern
the financial and operating policies by virtue of de-
facto control.

De-facto control may arise from circumstances
where it does not have more than 50% of the voting
power but is able to govern the financial and
operating policies by virtue of de-facto control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from
inter-company transaction that are recognised in
assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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F SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

tinued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at
the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combination (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the fair value of non-
controlling interest over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this
consideration is lower than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in

equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in the consolidated income
statement. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associated company, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to the
consolidated income statement.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable cost of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Associated company

An associated company is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investment in an associated company
is accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit
or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group's investment in an associated company includes
goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associated company is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associated company equals
or exceeds its interest in the associated company,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associated company.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associated company is impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the
associated company and its carrying amount and
recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit of an
associated company’ in the consolidated income
statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

24

2.5

Associated company (Continued)

Impairment testing of the investment in the associated
company is required upon receiving dividends from this
investment if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the associated company in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the Company’s separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associated company are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associated company.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Accounting policies of associated companies
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associated companies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Executive Directors that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available-for-
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions); and
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (Continued)
(iiiy all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associated company that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the equity holders of the Company
are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in
the Group’s ownership interest in associated
companies or jointly controlled entities that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence or
joint control) the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to
the consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the repaired part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives,

as follows:

Buildings 5-10%

Leasehold improvements 20% or over
lease terms,

whichever is shorter
18%-33%
9%—-33%
18%—-25%

Office furniture and equipment
Plant and equipment
Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10).

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
companies in the consolidated group, is classified as
investment property. The cost of an investment property
comprises its purchase price and any costs directly
attributable to bringing the property to its intended use.
After initial recognition, investment property is stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method
to allocate cost of the investment property over its
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 5%

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment.

Leasehold land

Leasehold land is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents
upfront prepayments made for the rights to use the land
for periods varying from 40 to 50 years. Amortisation of
leasehold land is expensed in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease or when there is impairment, the impairment is
expensed in the consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

29

Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associated companies and joint ventures and
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Company’s interest in net fair
value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair
value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Brand name, licences, customer list and contracts,
patents and in-progress technology

Acquired brand name, licences, customer list and
contracts, patents and in-progress technology are
shown at historical cost. Brand name, licences,
customer list and contracts, patent and in-progress
technology acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the date of acquisition.
They have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the cost over their estimated useful lives (1.5-5
years).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

29

Intangible assets (Continued)

(c) Software
Acquired software are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over
their estimated useful lives (five years). Costs
associated with developing or maintaining
computer software programmes are recognised as
an expense as incurred.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use are not
subject to amortisation, which are at least tested annually
for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets and liabilities

2.11.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which

the financial assets were acquired. Management

determines the classification of its financial assets at

initial recognition.

The Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities
are classified as “other financial liabilities at

amortised cost”.

(a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if expected to
be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they
are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘trade, other receivables and deposits’, ‘long
term deposits’, ‘amount due from an
associated company’, ‘short-term bank
deposits’, and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in
the consolidated balance sheet.
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F SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

tinued)

2.11 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
2.11.1 Classification (Continued)

(c)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost are
initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The
Group’s other financial liabilities at amortised
cost comprise ‘trade and other payables’,
‘amount due to an associated company’ and
‘borrowings’ in the consolidated balance
sheet.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at
fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the fair value adjustments accumulated in
equity are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement as ‘other gains/(losses), net’. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of ‘other gains,
net” when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated income statement as part
of other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.12

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

(a)  Assets carried at amortised cost
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a)  Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is also evidence that the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-
for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income
statement.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-in-
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
related production overhead (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15

2.16

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired.
The amount of the provision is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement within administrative expenses. When a
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against
administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investment with
original maturities of three months or less.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

217

2.18

2.19

2.20

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and

deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated

income statement, except to the extent that it relates to

items recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and an
associated company operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and an associated company, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.22 Employee benefits

(a)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Pension Scheme”) set up pursuant to
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated
income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Pension Scheme.
The assets of the Pension Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an
independently administrated fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed to the Pension
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, in accordance
with the rules of the Pension Scheme.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as an employee benefit expense
when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the
Group is required to contribute an amount to
certain retirement benefit schemes based on
approximately 7% to 20% of the wages for the year
of those employees in the PRC. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of those employees of the
Group. Contributions to these retirement benefits
schemes are charged to the consolidated income
statement as incurred.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)  Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable for
the year after certain adjustments. The Group
recognizes a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable for the sale of goods and services

in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue

is shown net of value added tax, returns, rebates and

discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can

be reliably measured; when it is probable that future

economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when

specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity
has delivered products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products and
collectibility of the related receivables is reasonably
assured.

Provision of services

Revenue from fixed-price contracts is recognised
using the stage of completion method, measured by
reference to the agreed milestones of work
performed and is shown after eliminating sales
within the Group.

If circumstances arise that may change the original
estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress
toward completion, estimates are revised. These
revisions may result in increases or decreases in
estimated revenues or costs and are reflected in the
consolidated income statement in the period in
which the circumstances that give rise to the
revision become known by management.

Licence income

Income from licensing of software program to an
associated company is recognised upon the
installation of the licensed program on the related
products by its customers.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25

2.26

2.27

2.28

Other Income

(a) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

(b) Lease income — operating lease
Rental income from investment property is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are expensed in the consolidated income statement
on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Government grants

Grants from the government for high-tech companies are
recognised in “other income” in the consolidated income
statements at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Group
will comply with all the attached conditions.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset. The grant is recognised as income
over the life of a depreciable asset by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Research and development

Research expenditure is expensed as incurred. Costs
incurred on development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new or improved products) are recognised
as intangible assets when it is probable that the project
will be a success considering its commercial and
technological feasibility, and costs can be measured
reliably. Other development expenditures are expensed
as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as
an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.29 Dividend distribution

3.1

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value
interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors.
The Directors identified and evaluated financial risks in
close co-operation with the operating units of the Group.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk

(a)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group's foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”),
HK$, Japanese Yen (“JPY”) and US dollars
(“US$”). The majority of assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB, HK$, JPY and USS$,
and there are no significant assets and
liabilities denominated in other currencies.
The Group is subject to foreign exchange rate
risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities which are denominated in a
currency other than HK$, JPY or RMB, which
are the functional currencies of the major
operating companies within the Group. The
Group currently does not hedge its foreign
currency exposure.

As HKS$ is pegged to US$, management
believes that the exchange rate risk for
translations between HK$ and US$ do not
have material impact to the Group. The
exchange rate of RMB to HK$ is subject to the
rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.
The Group manages its foreign currency risk
by closely monitoring the movement of the
foreign currency rates.
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ISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

For companies with HK$ as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2012, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HK$ with all
other variables held constant, post-tax loss for
the year would have been approximately
HK$1,922,000 higher/lower (2011:
HK$1,907,000 higher/lower), mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of RMB denominated current
account with group companies which have
foreign currency other than HK$.

As at 31 December 2012, if JPY had
weakened/strengthened by 1% against the
HK$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,870,000 higher/lower
(2011: HK$1,955,000 higher/lower), mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference
on translation of JPY denominated
receivables.

For companies with RMB as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2012, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax loss for
the year would have been approximately
HK$89,000 lower/higher (2011: HK$325,000
lower/higher), mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange difference on translation of HK$
denominated cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables and borrowings as well
as the current accounts with group
companies.

3

R ERE )
31 HMERMEZ(E)
@ ATEER(E)
(i)  SNERE ()

BT BE R
Z AT
S
=t—R BAREX
BILEE/FHES% A
A EBER/TE
FRKRBEERSE
n/m A 491,922,000
(=% — —F: &
/R 41,907,000
) ERENEFRE
TCIASNE B R R B D A
RBAARBEHEZE
RERE RN 25 -

RZE—ZF+=A
=t+—H HZBHELE
TLERE/AE1%  Hi
FTEg8EFIE F
MR 12 BB RS 1 N, R
4 491,870,000 7T ( =
T——F BN m D
1,955,000 L) £ Z
MR LB BEEZ
FEU R TR A AT H =5 o

FUAREABEINGEE
A Ivd/NE]
RZT—ZF+=A
=+—HB BETHEA
REZEFE%  H
AT BB TE
FABRBEBEER
A/ H8 91 #989,0007 7T
(ZZ2——F  jd i
3250008 L) £ E
MR EBABTEHEZ
RehBSEEY K
W AR TR I H b MR R IE
EBRAREEERNRZ
FIREEEEIE L Z5E -



98

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bk B T 5 3 0 B i

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

For companies with RMB as their functional
currency (Continued)

At 31 December 2012, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax loss for
the year would have been approximately
HK$213,000 higher/lower (2011:
HK$1,090,000 higher/lower), mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of US$ denominated cash and
cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables as well as the current accounts
with group companies.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk because investments held by the
Group are classified on the consolidated
balance sheet either as available-for-sale or at
fair value through profit or loss. The Group is
not exposed to commodity price risk. To
manage its price risk arising from investments
in equity securities, diversification of the
portfolio is done in accordance with the limits
set by the Executive Directors.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. The Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets, except for
cash placed with banks.

At 31 December 2012, if interest rates on all
interest-bearing short-term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents had been 100 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, post-tax loss for the year of the
Group would have been approximately
HK$8,126,000 lower/higher (2011
HK$11,660,000 lower/higher) due to interest
income earned on market interest rate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2012, the Group does not
have any borrowings. As at 31 December
2011, the Group’s borrowings are all issued
at fixed rates which expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. Management considers
the fair value exposure of the fixed rate
borrowings is insignificant to the Group.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its
available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, trade and other
receivables, and deposits with banks.

The carrying amounts of available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, trade and other receivables, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to financial assets.

To manage this risk, deposits are mainly placed
with state-owned financial institutions and
reputable banks. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales are made to reputable and credit-
worthy customers with an appropriate financial
strength, credit history and appropriate percentage
of down payments. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews regularly the authorisation of credit limits to
individual customers and recoverable amount of
each individual trade receivables.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
mainly represent investments in equity securities
listed on recognised exchange. Investments in
available-for-sale financial assets are reviewed and
approved by the Executive Directors. Procedures
are in place to regularly review the business plans
and the performance of these investments to ensure
the related credit risks is properly managed.

The Group has concentration of credit risk. Sales of
goods and services to the largest customer
accounted for 28% (2011: 25%) for the total
revenue, and top five customers constituted 52% of
the Group’s turnover for the year ended 31
December 2012 (2011: 54%).

Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group
aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and ensure the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of available financing,
including short-term bank loans. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the
Group's finance department maintains flexibility in
funding by maintaining adequate amount of cash
and cash equivalents and flexibility in funding
through having available sources of financing.

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over and
above balance required for working capital
management are transferred to interest bearing bank
deposits with appropriate maturities to manage its
overall liquidity position. As at 31 December 2012,
the Group maintained cash at bank and on hand of
HK$794,195,000 (2011: HK$1,167,201,000) that is
expected to be readily available to meet the cash
outflows of its financial liabilities.

The table below analyses the Company’s and the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not
significant.
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BN HBNSIT - BARRA R
AREERFFTESRBES R
ERATHBER - ZRAEE
THEAANAMEARDRE -
HARBRHNEZEDT K 8RN
T8 A AR EIE & eR AR
HIRmE AR
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

R ERE )

3.1 BBEMERGE)

Liquidity risk (Continued) © RBEDER
Group rEE
Less than
1 year Total
DR—F et
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 31 December 2012 R-T——F
+-RA=+—H
Amount due to an associated company JEAT — Bk & A R RIE 4,082 4,082
Trade and other payables FERTBRS &E{‘&Fgﬁ
WNIE 459,565 459,565
Total @t 463,647 463,647
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%F
“R=+—
Borrowings &k 24,547 24,547
Trade and other payables FEAS AR AR B E At FE A
RIE 368,624 368,624
Total st 393,171 393,171
Company EA/N
At 31 December 2012 RZZE——F
+ZA=+—H
Other payables H e sRIE 9,373 9,373
At 31 December 2011 RZT——F
+-A=+—8
Other payables H At B 500R 1,952 1,952
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.2

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided

by total equity. Management considers the gearing ratios
as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 as reasonable.

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2011 was as follows:

Total borrowings fE R

R EE )

3.2

EXEBEE
AEBEREANB N RREAEE
FERE  URBRIRHERIAR R
HAb MR E SR - W&
EEAEBAREERKA -

REFHABRELRGER  AEEATH
EARRIMORESHE - ARRE
BIR AR ~ BETTHTAR (7 3k H & B E PR

DEIE -

AEBRIFANE B FEITER -
AR B E R ARSI S
Wi ERERAR-T-FR
—ET-—F+-A=t—ANEAE
ELEBAIE -

R-B——F2Z2ERBBLEMNT :

As at

31 December
2011
RZE——%F
t=ZA=+—"H
HK$'000
FET

23,445

Total equity

2,939,042

Gearing ratio (%)

AARBELLE (%)

0.8

The Group does not have any borrowings as at 31
December 2012.

RoT——F+=-A=+—01 &%
] AR K
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.3

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

J Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

J Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets that were
measured at fair value at 31 December 2012.

Aok 1 WA 5 0 % B ik

R ERE )
3.3 AT EMGE

TROMUGEER D FEIRNE
BTA -CEENTRSEIOT

o HREBEXBEHEFETISR
B CRERE)(BE—R) -

e KEERF-MNEEN B
EXRENAERAR(BE
R EME(REERE) @
ABRH (B »

o UWIIRBABEMSERME
EMEESRBENHABRAD
THEENBAER) (F=
&) o

TREVAEBA-ZZ——F+=A
=+ HEATFENENEE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R ER E=& et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value BAFERA
through profit or loss A S EE 2
— Trading securities —BAEEE 13,948 - - 13,948
Available-for-sale AP ESH
financial assets BE
— Equity securities — AR FE 5 - - 27,267 27,267
Total &5t 13,948 - 27,267 41,215




104

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bk B T 5 3 0 B i

3

3.3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BXRRER@
Fair value estimation (Continued) DFEMEF(E)
The following table presents the Group's assets that were TRE2NAREBNR -—ZE—F+—8
measured at fair value at 31 December 2011. —t+t—BERAFEFENEE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—H E-R F=R BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHETT
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value AT EETA
through profit or loss AR
— Trading securities —EH5BEE 495 - - 495
— Collecting investment —E£5KE
scheme HE 9,996 - - 9,996
Available-for-sale financial AHHESRE
assets EE
— Equity securities —RARFES - - 23,800 23,800
Total A&t 10,491 - 23,800 34,291

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices
are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of
observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

EERMSEENERTAZAY
B RIEGEEANTISHRETHE - i
MHEREAANRZH K58 &
i ITRAM  TERBREEHE
Beks NE S - B AERRE S
TRFMEXHNRE - MBEEHS
BRIEENS - ARBEREREE
MmSRERSHEAE - BETA
BE—PEte -

WHRAERMZAEEZSRMTA
(ASIMTETR) VA ERITTEE A
FE - ZEHERTEERAAIBR
mHEE(A) ARERIKEE
BZREMF - ELAZRFEMTE
EMEERHBORTERYE B
BIAEAE M-
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value level 3
financial instruments include techniques such as
discounted cash flow analysis.

In applying the discounted cash flow technique,
management has taken into account the estimated
amount that the Group would receive to sell the
instrument at the balance sheet date, taking into account
current interest rates and the current credit worthiness of
the counterparties. Where discounted cash flow
techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are
based on management’s best estimates and the discount
rate is a market related rate for a similar instrument at the
balance sheet date.

There were no significant transfers of financial assets
between the fair value hierarchy classifications during the
year.

3

Aok 1 WA 5 0 % B ik

R ERE )
3.3 DT EMEE(E)

HEERZAEARIBEL AT ER
ZMIBEBAE  BRETAKTAS
=

RUARE=F eI AMEZFEM
BERMEEBRRARERENINER
My o

ERRRR S EREME - ERED
ARAEEGWHUARGEERRET
At BENEUARE T
BEERARR - WMERRKRRERE
By - AEERRRERELERER
BHANREG RERLUTANH
RAT S ALR R AFH

FA - BEAFESHOBHZ S
BEBREE -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3
financial instruments for the years ended 31 December

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

3 BXRRER@

3.3 AFEMGF(E)

TRENBE-_T——FR_F——
FHT_A=+—HIEFEE=RTR

2012 and 2011: THAZZ%):
Available-
for-sale
financial
assets
AHtHE
SMEE
HK$’000
FHT
As at 1 January 2012 HR_E——F—HF—H 23,800
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 36(b)) Wb — B 2 R (M1 36(b)) 6,106
Fair value loss on revaluation recognised REAMZEWEERZ
in other comprehensive income BEREATEER (2,751)
Exchange realignment bE 5, 3 28 112
As at 31 December 2012 RZZE——F
+=A=+—H 27,267
Total gain/(loss) for the year included in the RERRFTHEERT A
consolidated income statement for assets held *éﬂﬁ(mi‘%ZiW
at the end of the year Wiz, (E18) -
As at 1 January 2011 R-Z——F—H—H 23,500
Fair value gain on revaluation recognised in RE M2 E R R 2
other comprehensive income s AFERE 300
As at 31 December 2011 RZT——%F
—A=+—H 23,800

Total gain/(loss) for the year included in the
consolidated income statement for assets held
at the end of the year

RELBRAFEETA
HARERZFA
Was,(B518) BEE
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated

financial statements are evaluated and based on historical

experience and other factors, including expectations of future

events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the

future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that may have a significant effect on the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year

are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Estimated impairment of intangible assets

The Group tests annually for impairment of goodwill in
accordance with accounting policy as stated in note 2.10.
The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined
based on the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and
value-in-use calculation of the underlying assets.

An impairment charge of HK$24,600,000 was made in
the Group'’s electronics power meter and solutions CGU
(2011: impairment charge of HK$154,836,000 was made
in the Group’s payment solutions CGU) during the year,
resulting in the carrying amount of the CGU being written
down to its recoverable amount. Please refer to note 18
for more details.

Impairment of investment in an associated company

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associated company is impaired. The recoverable amount
is determined as the higher of the associated company’s
fair value less costs to sell or its value in use. Please refer
to note 21 for more details.

Impairment of receivables

The Executive Directors determine the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables based on the
credit history of its customers and the current market
condition. The Directors reassess the provision
periodically.

Aok 1 WA 5 0 % B ik

BS54 aT R H

AR fREER S M Bk 2 that RAE - 75
ARBEgR kAR SREHAR
EERBERTHEAELR 2 EMHMEDL

AEEELBARARR G REE - BH
BE - FMFEEFELEABMZERS
RAR - TXEwAGE RREAIES Y
TEMBFEEEELEEZRAEEERK
BATE -

@ BEEEERERG
AEEERM 2. 10T &5 K
MEERELETFRANA - BeESE
Bz RESBIZEEEEZ R
FEBHEERAEEREERETZ

MRS EEEMN 2 RAERREE
AT Bl &5 - NEREAREEERER
EEMRBRIRESEASBNEE
BB & 24,600,000 L (ZZE——
F o AKESINBAARESCELAS
UEARMEE A 154,836,000787T) °
FFIEELS MR8

(b) R—REIHENRERE
REBPEERSE BHETRBZ A
ANKRERDFEEMNEHRER
& JEeEAME N NFNATE
WO ERKARFEABEEMENRS
F o FHIBELHME21 -

(©  FEWREBIE
HITEFERNERPNEERENR
I - B TE FE YR AR I At FE UK
AR BE R - EFE MBI HE
e
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Contract revenue recognition

According to the accounting policies of fixed price
contracts as stated in note 2.24, the Group uses the
“percentage of completion method” to determine the
appropriate revenues, costs and work-in-progress (“WIP”)
to be recognised in a given period. The stage of
completion is measured by reference to the service
performed and accepted by the customers up to the
balance sheet date as a percentage of total services to be
performed.

Upon applying the percentage of completion method, the
Group needs to estimate the gross profit margin of each
contract, which is determined based on the estimated
total contract costs and total contract sum. If the actual
gross profit margin of each contract differs from the
management’s estimates, the contract cost and WIP to be
recognised within the next year will need to be adjusted
accordingly.

In addition, the Directors of the Company are of the
opinion that, except for the provision made, there were
no expected losses, where the estimated total contract
costs exceed the total estimated contract revenue, and
needed to be recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.

4

BEE AT RAE @)

(d)

(e)

BRI FER
RIEETEEBREH 2 G EE (W
FE224%5)R) AEBEAIEXKE
b vE | B TE T R ER A R A FE RERR A
HEWRA - AAREZIR([ERET
Bl - ERE2EHEEERALE
BT ERPEMN IR - (hEETT
fRIGBREC B A LLETHE ©

EEMATIADIER  KAEEFZ2
BT EANZENER - RIRMEFEH
BRI G WHEERE - HESS
MZEREMNEEEEB ZMEFA
Rl T—FEERZADKARERE
TREEFEZFELAEHE -

AN ARBEERR - BREfFhz
B BRI U EBX(AMEF AL
MRASERIB A ET B M) AR
BIRERPHER

B RAEAL IR
AEBEAHNZEREERNOME
B o BT ISTHEEBER - FRIED
BEXRAE - FE2RBMFAEZRETE
FARBERETE o B SRR AERERY)
RSB TAE  FEZERTEE
E MR Z TS HANRE B IR B o

EEEERRB KRB LB R
AR S i Z R A RIS 1R
B BlE TERZEMRBERZ
EERIAEETIARR - RERER
ZHERTTBETR ©
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(LOSSES), NET

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS/ 5

Revenue, other income and other gains/(losses), net recognised

during the year are as follows:

WA~ BB AR E S (6

B) R

RERNTERZ WA - H U A F E A I

#/ (B1R) SR T

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=1+T—-HLHFE

2012 2011
—E-C—F —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Turnover =
Provision of telecommunication solutions REEABRT R 167,269 177,204
Provision of financial solutions RESBBRTR 248,112 178,077
Provision of payment solutions RMEINEBRTR 146,308 48,363
Sales of electronic power meters and solutions HEFREEMNK
IR TT B 279,365 419,149
Provision of payment settlement services RESHEERS 26,457 15,881
Licence income from an associated company P =Rl NI S
(Note 37(a)) WA (K5t 37(a) 795 -
868,306 838,674
Other income HAUA
Interest income FERA 4,911 9,495
Value added tax refund RBIEEN 2,097 -
Subsidy income FEEEHA 527 3,406
Rental income WA 2,178 2,040
Others Hh 1,713 1,131
11,426 16,072
Other gains/(losses), net Hiblz, (B18) F48E
Gain/(loss) on disposal of financial assets HERAFEF AmF
at fair value through profit or loss HEEZEREELZ
Wz (E5E) 291 (28)
Dividend income on financial assets at BAFEF ARFIkEE
fair value through profit or loss TRIEEZBREMSA 20 16
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets at AT EF GRS EE 2
fair value through profit or loss TREBEEZNFE
Wz, (E518) 3,910 (2,365)
Loss on dilution of interests in an associated A S N s
company EES - (1,885)
4,221 (4,262)
Turnover, other income and other R AU A REAM
gains/(losses), net Wk (E518) /548 883,953 850,484
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6  SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on

the internal reports reviewed by the Board of Directors that are

used to make strategic decisions.

The Board of Directors consider the business from a product
perspective.

The Group is organised into four main operating segments in

these internal reports.

(a)

Telecommunication solutions — principally engaged in
the provision of telecommunication platform operation
services and operation value-added services;

Financial solutions — principally engaged in the
provision of information system consultancy, integration
and operation services and sales of information
technology products to financial institutions and banks;

Payment solutions — principally engaged in the provision
of mobile payment platform operation services and
mobile and wireless payment solutions and services; and

Electronic power meters and solutions — principally
engaged in the manufacturing and sales of electronic
power meters, data collection terminals and provision of
information system consultancy services; and the research
and development of communication technology.

=)
N

S EERBEFSEHIAMELRBIREZ
BREMBERBOE -

EXEeERAEEEE -

REBNARHED REOEZZEBIME -

BARATE - B FEETAT
GBS S R R |

SRR R -T2 ERMBHEE
FARITIREE MR RANR - SACEE
ERBMBEEMER

XNBRTR-TBREREBDX
5137 518 & RTE A K 75 B B A S A
R ERRT - &

BRI BEEMMBERT R -TBEHR=E
EENMHEESHIEER  BUBIE
i IR E R R A AR - AR
W5t R R BB E R -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 TEEH®
An analysis of the Group’s revenues and results for the year by REBFANREBHBEZWAREED T
operating segment is as follows: N
Electronic
Telecom- power
munication Financial Payment  meters and Total
solutions solutions solutions solutions Others Group
ERtitE
BERBR  SEEBR  XABRR ERRER
bES bVoE S VS b Htt  KESH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Year ended 31 December 2012 B2-Z2-—%
TZAZ+-BLEFE
Segment turnover AREEER 167,269 251,533 148,167 279,365 27,252 873,586
Inter-segment turnover PEREEE - (3421) (1,859) - - (5,280)
Turnover from external customers RANBRE 7 &E8E 167,269 248,112 146,308 279,365 27,252 868,306
Segmental earning/(loss) MG ERBERERN 2
before interest expense, taxes, RASZE  HIE - &
depreciation and amortisation REHERAR/(EE)
(“EBITDA”) and before impairment ~ ([EBITDAJ)
of intangible assets 16,656 8,792 (91,733) (32,686) (10,481) (109,452)
Impairment of intangible assets BREAERE - - - (24,600) - (24,600)
Segmental EBITDA HEEEBITDA 16,656 8,792 (91,733) (57,286) (10,481) (134,052)
Depreciation W& (8,843) (5,490) (8,745) (7,185) 3,351)  (33,614)
Amortisation B (2,525) - - (5,042) - (7,567)
Segmental operating profit/(loss) APELEER/ (BE) 5,288 3,302 (100,478) (69,513) (13,832) (175,233
Unallocated other income ARREMMA 8,934
Unallocated corporate expenses ADEEERX (81,382)
Share of profit of an JEAE— RS A R)a A
associated company 73,616
Finance costs BERKAR (1,295)
Loss before income tax BATETATER (175,360)
Income tax credit FrigiEe 863
Loss for the year FNER (174,497)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 DEER®
Electronic
Telecom- power
munication Financial Payment  meters and Total
solutions solutions solutions solutions Others Group
BheATE
BRBR  SRBA  XEBR ERRBR
FE IES HE PIE S iy SEE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FAET FET FET TET FET
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE-E-—-F
TZA=+-BLEFE
Segment turnover PHRERE 177,204 212,079 48,493 419,149 15,881 872,806
Inter-segment turnover NEREEE - (34,002) (130) - - (34,132)
Turnover from external RENBEFZE5E
customers 177,204 178,077 48,363 419,149 15,881 838,674
Segmental EBITDA and before NGB EVEEREMZAR
impairment of intangible assets EBITDA 20,855 16,603 (84,690) (43,900) (24,089) (115,221)
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE - - (154,830) - - (154,836)
Segmental EBITDA 7 S EBITDA 20,855 16,603 (239,526) (43,900) (24,089)  (270,057)
Depreciation & 9,177) (16,409) (3,516) (6,953) (3,364) (39,419)
Amortisation 3z - - (8,760) (7,318) - (16,078)
Segmental operating profit/(loss) AL ET,/ (BR) 11,678 194 (251,802) (58,171) (27,453)  (325,554)
Unallocated other income AOBEEMBA 3,052
Unallocated corporate expenses AAMEERX (41,042)
Share of profit of an JEAL — TR E A R)a A
associated company 77,809
Finance costs BERA (1,796)
Loss before income tax WS TATER (287,531)
Income tax credit FEHER 7,809
Loss for the year ENEE (279,722)



SRR (PR R QA

—B-CFFR 113

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok 1 WA 5 0 % B ik

6  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 EER ®)
Unallocated corporate expenses represent costs that are used AOBECERIIERRAED BERKA -
for all segments, including depreciation of property, plant and SRBIEME - WE RREITE?2,352,000
equipment of HK$2,352,000 (2011: HK$1,028,000), B (ZZ——% :1,028,000/87T) « 8&
depreciation of investment properties of HK$172,000 (2011: ) % H BE172,00008 (=T — — F:
HK$150,000) and amortisation of leasehold land of 150,000 7T ) & 0 & £ 15 $5 760,000 78
HK$760,000 (2011: HK$760,000), respectively. TL(ZZF——1%F : 760,000 7T) ©
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2012 and R-ZEB-—ZF+-_A=+—RAZHHEEE
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December rEEREEE T ——F+-_A=+—H
2012 are as follows: IFFEZERBDEEMRENT :
Electronic
Telecom- power
munication Financial Payment  meters and Total
solutions solutions solutions solutions Others  Unallocated  Elimination Group
BRTE
@R SRR XAMR ERR
bES VS FR BRER Hith ADE HHE W KEAH
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TER TET TERT THET TET TET TET TER
As at 31 December 2012 R-B-——&
+=B=t-8
Segment assets PERE 692,579 184,007 265983 531,907 269,854 2,237,523  (989,554) 3,192,299
Segment liabilities HEEE (125563)  (139,303)  (537,618)  (314,804)  (332,128) (51,052 989,554  (510914)
Year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-E—-—F
TZAZt+-BLEFE
Additions to non-current assets  JERBBEZRE
(excluding long-term deposits, — (TBIEREEE
interest in an associated [ il AN
company and available-for- BERAHHE
sale financial assets) SREE) 18,019 4,314 37,426 1,576 6,711 - - 68,046
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6  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 DEERW
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2011 and R-E—-——F+A=+—Hznk: F
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December rEBEEBHE_T——F+ZA=+—
2011 are as follows: IFEZERDEENRENT !
Electronic
Telecom- power
munication Financial Payment  meters and Total
solutions solutions solutions solutions Others  Unallocated  Elimination Group
B
BHR  SRMR  XAER ERR
LES AR AR BRAR Hity AW B £EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR FiEx TR FER
As at 31 December 2011 R-ZF-—-%
+ZA=t+-H
Segment assets PEEE 571,290 151,581 177,802 636,540 277,485 2,157,571  (579,760) 3,392,509
Segment liabilities HRAME (36,612) (62,417)  (286,468)  (350,538)  (292,295) (4,897) 579,760 (453,467)
Year ended Hz-3-—-%
31 December 2011 +ZA=+-H
LHERE
Additions to non-current assets ~ FERBEEZRE
(excluding long-term deposits, ~ (TBIERHES -
interest in an associated EE—EBE AR
company and available-for- BEakafEHE
sale financial assets) SREE) 3,777 408 7,206 11,447 14,162 21 - 37,021
Additions to non-current assets comprise additions to property, ERBEENRERTEYDE  BE L&
plant and equipment and intangible assets including additions BUREBREENRE @ﬁiﬁ?@%?}%é\

resulting from acquisition through business combinations.

Revenues of approximately HK$244,110,000 (2011:
HK$212,983,000) are derived from a single external customer.
These revenues are attributable to the telecommunication
solutions segment of HK$153,572,000 (2011:
HK$164,636,000) and payment solutions segment of
HK$90,538,000 (2011: HK$48,347,000) in the PRC.

Information provided to the Board of Directors is measured in a
manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial
statements. These assets and liabilities are allocated based on
the operations of the segment.

Sales between segments are carried out at normal commercial
terms. The revenue from external parties reported to the Board
of Directors is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement.

{?:Fig Lly E%E i E’] //J\\

U A #7244,110,0008 0 (=B — —4 ¢
212,983,000 87C) EEBE—HNEES ©
ZEWASRIREFEANEABARATERS
$8 /153,572,000 jt( = & — — F:
164,636,0008 70 ) LA R SRR T R D4R
490,538,000 w( = T — — F:
48,347,000/87T) °

MEFRUIEMNRAERZS
—HEIERE -
COESpy P

U s
ZEBERBERSE

SR 2 U 1 MR R IRREAT - I
FRERAHNDER 2 RARARE A K
AR A HREE -
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6  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group is principally domiciled in Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Japan and Macau. The Group’s turnover by geographical
location, which is determined by the location in which the
turnover are generated from, is as follows:

Aok 1 WA 5 0 % B ik

DTEER (®)

AEBTERFEKRE  FE  HARE
FIREMl - REBIRIME 2 B X BIZEE
BELZWEHIIMT

For the year ended
31 December

BEt-A=T-HLEE

2012 2011

—E-—F —ET——%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET &

Mainland China ey NS 816,377 802,560
Hong Kong A 18,531 20,233
Japan SN 26,457 15,881
Macau JEFY 6,941 -
868,306 838,674

The Group’s non-current assets (excluding long term deposits,
interest in an associated company and available-for-sale
financial assets) and current assets by geographical location,
which is determined by the geographical location in which the
asset is located, is as follows:

AREBLZEEMEM ZIERBDEE(TE
REHZRS  EBIE-HBERRZERN
AHHESREE) RRBEERAERE
ol

As at 31 December

R+t=-—A=+—H

2012 2011
—EB——F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET

Non-current assets FREBEE
Mainland China B KB 233,509 237,268
Hong Kong O 1,498 2,485
Japan =N 14,965 11,962
249,972 251,715

Current assets REBEE

Mainland China ey NS 916,693 854,756
Hong Kong &5 284,637 627,485
Japan HR 245,607 258,548
Macau JELPY 7,141 -

1,454,078 1,740,789
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling expenses,
administrative expenses and impairment of intangible assets are

analysed as follows:

Auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(Note 16)

Depreciation of investment properties (Note 15)

Amortisation of leasehold land (Note 17)

Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 18)

Employee benefit expense (including Directors’
emoluments) (Note 9)
Costs of inventories sold (including provision/
(write back of provision) for inventories)
(Note 22)
Operating lease rentals in respect of land
and buildings
Operating lease rentals in respect of equipment
Research and development costs (including
staff costs)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Provision for impairment of trade receivables, net
Provision/(write back of provision) for inventories
Impairment of intangible assets (Note 18)

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

7 HUMEESZAX

ZEET IS

ME - B REETE
(Kt 16)

BEMENE (it 15)

FAE T (Wt 17)

BB ER (M 18)

EERAMFAZ (BIEES
<) (FtaF9)

EHRTFERA(BRETFE
Bl (BERE))
(Htax22)

T RIEF B TEL
e

B ikl ik

WMRERFAFERA(PEET
AR

HEDE - BMEKEE
ZWas

JE U BR BB B 55

TFERE/ (BREE)

B EAERE(HE18)

RIEERE - HEMRX TRERRER
BERENAZHAX 20T

For the year ended
31 December

2012
—E-——F
HK$’000
THER
2,600
35,966
172

1,036
7,291

415,527

288,644

35,545
14,967

145,608

(240)
2,158
14,541
24,600

BE+T-A=+—HLHEFE

2011
—T——fF
HK$’000
FET

2,880
40,447
150

1,031
15,807

343,400

424,371

23,483
22,505

105,510

(1,243)
1,458
(5,784)
154,836

NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE (LOSS)/GAIN

The net foreign exchange loss recognised in the consolidated
income statement and included in administrative expenses for
the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to
HK$22,347,000 (2011: exchange gain of HK$12,645,000).

8 IIEUERER) K

3L 37

o

HE-_T——F+-A=+—HBLFE"

REEA R ERPER BT ATHRERZH
PE 518 % 58 % 22,347,000/ L ( — T — —
F  HMEURES 12,645,000 8 7T) °
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING

DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTY)

9

Aok 1 WA 5 0 % B ik

BERIAX (BEEEME)

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2012 2011
—E—-CF —T——1F
HK$/000 HK$'000
TR FHE&T
Wages and salaries TERF® 354,346 297,115
Pension costs and social security costs RIRS AR KAt ERFER AR 61,102 46,252
Employees’ incentive programme of a subsidiary —MEK B A R 2 & 8 526
(Note 27(b)) STEI Azt 27b)) 79 33
415,527 343,400
Notes: Bt -

@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or agreed to

waive any emolument during the year (2011: Nil).

The Directors’” emoluments for the year are equivalent to key management
compensation (2011: same). The remuneration of every Director and chief

executive for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out below:

@  EBRGRAREHS
FRLHEFHERAEAREAWS R (=
T ) -

FNEFHREENEEEREEM (T ——
£ 4AR)  BE-T-——#t-A=t—AL
F - SREFROTRLROMSIT

Employer’s
contribution
Discretion- to pension
Fees Salary ary bonus scheme Total
BEzEHKE
ue e BAETEAL sHEIfR st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$/000 HK$’000
Name of Director EEpng FET FHET FHET FHERT FTiEx
Executive Directors HTES
Cheung Yuk Fung RELE 360 - - - 360
Kui Man Chun REE
(Chief Executive Officer) (TR #a#) - 1,680 2,200 14 3,894
Xu Wensheng £ 3¢ - 1,209 1,800 14 3,023
Li Wenjin e - 1,080 1,500 14 2,594
Xu Chang Jun %®EE - 876 1,500 14 2,390
360 4,845 7,000 56 12,261
Non-Executive Director FYTES
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard RigE 120 - - - 120
120 - - - 120
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
Tam Chun Fai BiRE 100 - - - 100
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER 100 - - - 100
Xu Sitao HRR 100 - - - 100
300 - - - 300
780 4,845 7,000 56 12,681
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 9 EEEIPZ(BREEM) @
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued) (a) BEERTHARMS (B)
The remuneration of every Director and chief executive for the year ended BE-_Z——F+_-_A=1+—BILFE  58E
31 December 2011, is set out below: ERITHREZOBEWT :
Employer’s
contribution
Discretion- to pension
Fees Salary ary bonus scheme Total
EEXzERE
ik e [SlEpian BElEEA st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Name of Director £y FTExT FHET FET FHT FET
Executive Directors HITES
Cheung Yuk Fung REE 360 - - 4 364
Kui Man Chun REE
(Chief Executive Officer) (7TB 48 %) - 1,680 - 12 1,692
Xu Wensheng & - 1,202 - 12 1,214
Li Wenjin EYE - 1,080 - 12 1,092
Xu Chang Jun ®EE - 872 - 12 884
360 4,834 - 52 5,246
Non-Executive Directors FYITES
Yang Lei, Raymond (Note) A 108 - - - 108
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard R Z 120 - - - 120
228 - - - 228
Independent Non-Executive BIFHTES
Directors
Tam Chun Fai EiRE 100 - - - 100
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER 100 - - - 100
Xu Sitao R 100 - - - 100
300 - - - 300
888 4,834 - 52 5,774
Note: Mr. Yang Lei, Raymond ceased to be a non-executive director of Wi BEEER-_Z—F+—A=+B8

the Company on 26 November 2011. BEEARARIFEMITES -
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 9 EEEIMZX(BREESEMS) W
DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTYS) (Continued)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (b) AEREHFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for AEEANFERAEARaFATBENZESE (=
the year included four Directors (2011: three). The emoluments payable to T——F =) REFRNBT—R(Z
the remaining one (2011: two) individual during the year are as follows: ——F WE) AL ZBEENT

For the year ended
31 December

BEt-ZA=+—-HLEE

2012 2011
—F-=F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RBREWRE 1,476 2,650
Pension cost RIRS KA
— defined contribution plan —ERHNEE 838 158
1,564 2,808
The emoluments fall within the following band: MENF o4
Number of individuals
A8
2012 2011
—F-=F T F
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T — 1,500,000 7T - 2
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,500,000 1,500,001 /% 7T —2,500,000 % 7T 1 -
1 2
10 FINANCE COSTS 10 BERAK

For the year ended
31 December

BEt+-A=1+—RHLEE

2012 2011
—F-=-F ZF—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Interest on bank borrowings SRITIE B 1,295 1,796
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11 INCOME TAX CREDIT 11 FEHER
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% BB NS TR AF A ET R RRT& MR
(2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. E165%(=2FE——4%F :16.5%) 5+ & - i§
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the HNEFI BB B A A BT ER SR - 1%
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation AREBLEREERRERZHERTE -

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=1t—HLEEE

2012 2011
—B--F —Z2——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FHET
Current tax IR FLIE
— Hong Kong profits tax —BBFIEHR - -
— Overseas taxation —/BHNRIE 617 4,020
Deferred tax IRAETTIA (1,338) (10,348)
Adjustments in respect of prior years BIEFEHE (142) (1,481)
Income tax credit FisHiEe (863) (7,809)
The tax on the Group’s loss before tax differs from the 75 2 [ BT 15150 A1 RS 18 0 250 T8 B2 R R i
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average RERE B R M R I T K PrEt B H
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as IR Z T
follows:
For the year ended
31 December
BE+t-A=1t—-HLEE
2012 2011
—2--F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Loss before income tax B PSR RS 18 (175,360) (287,531)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable BN EBRELRE 2
to loss in the respective countries EAEMN R E 2R (38,134) (62,111)
Tax effects of: MBTE
Income not subject to tax BARBUA (18,599) (19,698)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes FEREL T E DA 2 2 17,707 32,383
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses PABERER 2 HIAFSE (4,840) (90)
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax W R TR JE TR 2 B8
was recognised (g 43,145 43,188
Adjustments in respect of prior years BEFERE (142) (1,481)
Income tax credit FiSHiE % (863) (7,809)
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 21.7% (2011: MAE T E AR R A21.7% (-8 ——4F -
21.6%). The change is caused by a change in the profitability 21.6%) o BEHEFE T AEE T B A TR

mix of the Group’s subsidiaries in the respective countries. HERRZ B HES LIRSS -



SRR (PR R QA

12

13

14

—E-CHER 121

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$55,289,000 (2011: HK$16,562,000).

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

(@)

Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

12

13

14

Aok 1 WA 5 0 % B ik

RRFREBFEABGEEER

ANAIERIEA AE(GEES55,289,000%
T(=F——4F 16,562,000/ 7T) R AR
R IERRERE -

RE

BE-T——F+-A=+—HILFE-
AR ALFRN REREABRE (T ——
F )

BRER

@ EXx
BREREBEIRARTERFEA
FEAG B 1ERR 5 A B 31T AR hn s
BHEHGE -

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=+—HLHFE

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER TET
Loss attributable to equity holders of the RARE=FEA ARL
Company (HK$'000) B8 (TET) (160,763) (255,493)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BT E RN
in issue (thousands) FEHE(FR) 2,673,430 2,673,430
Basic loss per share (HK$ per share) FRREAREE (FRET) (0.060) (0.096)
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14 LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b)

Diluted

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the
number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all potentially dilutive shares. The Company
has two categories of potentially dilutive shares:
convertible preference shares issued by a subsidiary and
share options issued by a subsidiary. The convertible
preference shares issued by a subsidiary are assumed to
be converted into ordinary shares of the Company and
share options are assumed to be fully vested and
exercised into ordinary shares of that subsidiary.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2012 is the same as the basic loss per share (2011: same)
as the conversion of potential ordinary shares in relation
to the outstanding convertible preference shares issued by
a subsidiary and share options issued by a subsidiary
would have an anti-dilutive effect to the basic loss per
share.

14 BREBR @

(b)

e
BREEEHRRERMBETHT
Bt 2 RRx i A B B AT SN E B AR B
BEtE - ARRGAMBELEEER
7 —EMEBARET I ARRES
P PA Ko — PRI B /B8 /2 )BT 2 BB A A
—FEIM B R BEITZ THRRERRTY
BRAUERARRBEER - B
AR GBS BN ETREEZIMNE
N2 EBE -

BE_ZT——F+-A=+—HIHF
ErzBREEBEEGRENEER
B(ZZ——%F : {8R) - Wy EEHR
HE— 1P BB A B 1T 2 BTN R
RBERR AR —FHM B AR T 2B
fRiEBR 2 BELRR  HE2EER
ERBEBREEREEYE -
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15 REYE
Group Company
EME NN
Buildings Buildings
B B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FET
At 1 January 2011 R-ZF——%—-A—H
Cost BXAR 3,055 5,157
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE (617) (1,042)
Net book amount REHE 2,438 4,115
Year ended BE-Z2——F
31 December 2011 TZA=Zt+—-HLEFE
Opening net book amount HOEREFE 2,438 4,115
Transfer from property, plant and EEME  BER
equipment (Note 16) i (ffat16) 121 -
Depreciation e (150) (258)
Closing net book amount HRIRENFE 2,409 3,857
At 31 December 2011 R=ZB-——%+=HA=+—H
Cost B %N 3,217 5,157
Accumulated depreciation ZEth & (808) (1,300)
Net book amount REFE 2,409 3,857
Year ended BE-E—=F
31 December 2012 TZA=Zt+—-HLEFE
Opening net book amount HYEREFE 2,409 3,857
Transfer from property, plant and HEME  BER
equipment (Note 16) R (Mt 16) 168 -
Depreciation e (172) (258)
Closing net book amount BREFE 2,405 3,599
At 31 December 2012 R=-ZB-=—H+=-RA=t—H
Cost [D%iN 3,446 5,157
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE (1,041) (1,558)
Net book amount HRARERE R E 2,405 3,599
Fair value (Note) NTHE (B 5T) 9,724 14,549

Note:

The fair value of the investment properties located at Level 15 to 17, Yindu
Building, No. 67 Fu Cheng Road, Haidian District, Beijing City, PRC (1t R /8 E
& E A 67 5RIRAPAE 15-1712) as at 31 December 2012 was assessed by the

independent and professionally qualified valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited, based RITEBRELE -

on current prices in an active market.

R b R TE R B A EE 67 SREREBRE 151718 218 E
MER—Z——F+-A=+—AZAVFE BBIE
ELARGEMEETGFBEBERAR  RERMEZ
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15 REWE®
All depreciation expense during the year has been charged to ENFBENERSIDHATHER(ZZ
administrative expense (2011: same). ——F : {@R) -
Interests in investment properties at their net book values are REYERESREIMFEITAT :

analysed as follows:

Group Company
REE ¥ NN
As at 31 December As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+—H R+=-—A=+—H
2012 2011 2012 2011

—2——F T =—E-—=-F =ZFT—F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FBT FHET FEx FHET
Outside Hong Kong, held on:  ZFB )
Leases of between 10 to Z10ZE50F L
50 years B 2,405 2,409 3,599 3,857
The following amounts have been recognised in the T EBEOREGERERAER
consolidated income statement:
Group
rEH

For the year ended
31 December

BEt-A=T-HLEE

2012 2011

= e

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT T

Rental income AN 2,178 1,981

Direct operating expenses arising from HEEHSWAZIREWE
investment property that generated rental income — FrE4L 2 HEK LY (428) (554)
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15 REWE )

There were no direct operating expenses arising from FR TELTEHASRAZEREMETE
investment property that did not generate rental income during EEFEAERELERM

the year.

The period of leases whereby the Group and the Company AEEMARRREBELCEROBEHEKRE
leases out its investment properties under operating leases MEZHEENT1FE2F -

ranged from 1 to 2 years.

At 31 December 2012, the future aggregate minimum rentals RZE—Z=ZF+ZA=+—8 " RETA
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases are as BEEEBY 2 RIRREERA S LFEN
follows: Ik
Group
TEE
2012 2011
—E——fF ZE——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET THETT
Not later than 1 year TR\ F 1,665 1,416
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years HRiE 1 FETHRESF 224 -

1,889

1,416
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16 Y% - BEKRE

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Group
A£EE
Office
furniture
Leasehold and Plant and Motor
Buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
HE BAE
#F MEEE RARRE BERZE RE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx THEx THEx THEx THET THET
At 1 January 2011 R-Z--%-f-H
Cost A 41,266 16,979 167,117 29,281 21,036 275,679
Accumulated depreciation ZHIME (6,473) (5,723) (121,833) (14,330) (10,587) (158,946)
Net book amount BEFE 34,793 11,256 45,284 14,951 10,449 116,733
Year ended BE2-®2—-%
31 December 2011 tZA=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount BREFE 34,793 11,256 45,284 14,951 10,449 116,733
Additions RE - 738 14,284 9,377 823 25,222
Transfer to investment properties BRRENE
(Note 15) (Hfzt15) (121) - - - - (121)
Acquisition of a subsidiary g —FEIFf B A A - - 4279 - - 4279
Disposals (Note 32(b)) HE (HzE320) - - (115) - - (115)
Depreciation & (2,372) (4,278) (27,017) (3,381) (3,399) (40,447)
Exchange realignment [& 5§ A% 1,353 358 1,831 773 318 4,633
Closing net book amount HIRREFE 33,653 8,074 38,546 21,720 8,191 110,184
At 31 December 2011 R-B——%
+=A=t+-8
Cost AR 42,767 17,617 191,055 40,105 17,498 309,042
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (9,114) (9,543) (152,509) (18,385) (9,307) (198,858)
Net book amount REFE 33,653 8,074 38,546 21,720 8,191 110,184
Year ended BE-Z--F
31 December 2012 +-A=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount BUREFE 33,653 8,074 38,546 21,720 8,191 110,184
Additions RE - 310 19,507 31,946 312 52,075
Transfer to investment properties BREREAME
(Note 15) (Htzt15) (168) - - - - (168)
Acquisition of a subsidiary B AR
(Note 36(b)) (1 36(h) - - 216 - - 216
Disposals (Note 32(b)) & (W2 32() - - (963) 45) - (1,008)
Depreciation nE (2,413) (3,180) (19,419) (7,631) (3,323) (35,966)
Exchange realignment [& 5 A% 227 29 (15) 440 25 706
Closing net book amount HREREFE 31,299 5,233 37,872 46,430 5,205 126,039
At 31 December 2012 RNZB-—F
+=A=t+-8
Cost &N 42,858 18,029 214,111 74,133 23,796 372,927
Accumulated depreciation SEHIE (11,559) (12,796) (176,239) (27,703) (18,591) (246,888)
Net book amount FEEE 31,299 5,233 37,872 46,430 5,205 126,039
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 16

17

Depreciation expense of HK$19,329,000 (2011:
HK$22,678,000) has been expensed in cost of sales,
HK$723,000 (2011: HK$1,049,000) in selling expenses and
HK$15,914,000 (2011: HK$16,720,000) in administrative
expenses.

As at 31 December 2012, banking facilities of RMB18,000,000
(approximately HK$22,385,000) were secured by buildings
with a net book value of HK$14,863,000 (Note 30).

As at 31 December 2011, bank borrowings and banking
facilities of RMB37,000,000 (approximately HK$45,656,000)
were secured by buildings with a net book value of
HK$27,836,000 (Note 30).

LEASEHOLD LAND 17

The Group’s interests in leasehold land represent operating
lease prepayments and their net book amounts are analysed as
follows:

Aok 1 WA 5 0 % B ik

ME - BERRKE®

HFrER X9 19,329,0008 T (ZE——1F :
22,678,000/ 70 ) B A5 E A AR & 84 -
723,000 7T ( =& — — £ : 1,049,000 /&
JC)RSHERS S ¢« & 15,914,0008 L2
RITRERSHE(ZZT——F : 16,720,000
BT ©

R_E——F+_A=+—8 RITEE
AR ¥18,000,000 7T (4922,385,0007% 7T )
LABR T F (B 14,863,000 78 T 1) 18 5 1E 1K 1
(MI7E30) ©

R=ZZT——F+=_A=+—8 "  RBITEX
KR 1712 B A R #37,000,0007T( 4
45,656,000/% 7T ) A BR ™ 5 {E27,836,000
B ITEEFIEE R (151 30) -

HE Lt

AEEREEL RS HERBHEE
MAFR - HEREFEITOT

Group Company
AEE KATE]
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H R+=—HA=+—H
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F-=fF T —F =B-=fF T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHT
Outside Hong Kong, held on:  &F#& 1)
Leases of between B10250F 2
10 to 50 years MWEE 37,330 38,277 25,790 26,549
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17 LEASEHOLD LAND (Continued) 17 #HEL#E)
The movement of the net book amount for leasehold land is as FHE+h 7 BEEFEZESHNOT ¢
follows:
Group Company
AEE KATH
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E2-—-F —E——F ZZEB-—-F5 —ET——=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET FHET
Opening net book amount FHEEMEFE 38,277 38,826 26,549 27,309
Amortisation #h5H (1,036) (1,031) (759) (760)
Exchange realignment PE 5 A% 89 482 - -
Closing net book amount B4R BRTE FE 37,330 38,277 25,790 26,549

During the year, amortisation expense of HK$58,000 (2011:
HK$57,000) has been expensed in cost of sales and
HK$978,000 (2011: HK$974,000) in administrative expenses,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2012, banking facilities of RMB18,000,000
(approximately HK$22,385,000) were secured on leasehold
land with a total net carrying amount of HK$3,642,000 (Note
30).

As at 31 December 2011, bank borrowings and banking
facilities of RMB37,000,000 (approximately HK$45,656,000)
were secured by leasehold land with a total net carrying
amount of HK$10,944,000 (Note 30).

£ 7R 58,0007 (= ZF——4% : 57,000
B CEEERDRBEEN A HER
978,000 7L ( ZF ——4F : 974,000/ 7T)
RITREASE -

R-E——F+=-A=+—8 RIT7EE
A% 18,000,000 7T (#722,385,0007% 7T )
Ty BREFEAREE3,642,000/8 L2 HE L
HEHE IR (FI3E30) o

RZTE——F+=-—A=+—8 " R{TEXK
X iR 1T & AR #37,000,0007T( %)
45,656,000/ 7T ) Jy R BR M F E B 5
10,944,000 7% 7T 2 T8 & £ Hb (B3 3F (BT 5
30) °
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 BEE
Patents and
capitalised
Customer software
listand development  In-progress
Goodwill Brand name  Licences  contracts costs  technology Total
ERREEE
EFRE EAzE8H4
EE A e RE#H BEBRA  HRPE am
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR TEx TR TR THET TET
At 1 January 2011 R=%2--%-A-H
Cost [H%N 231,424 4,735 - 47,542 23,874 6,328 313,903
Accumulated Rt B
amortisation - (4,735) - (9,657) (16,268) (1,055) (31,715)
Accumulated ZEREEE
impairment loss (29,593) - - - - - (29,593)
Net book amount FEFE 201,831 - - 37,885 7,606 5,273 252,595
Year ended BE-E-—-&
31 December 2011 +ZA=+-HLEE
Opening net book HREFE
amount 201,831 - - 37,885 7,606 5,273 252,595
Acquisition of Wi — B A
a subsidiary 7,388 - - - - - 7,388
Additions e - - - - 132 - 132
Amortisation charge g - - - (9,693) (4,824) (1,290) (15,807)
Impairment loss REFE (125,722) - - (29,0006) (108) - (154,836)
Exchange realignment &5 5% 9,574 - - 1,389 216 194 11,373
Closing net book
amount BREBFE 93,071 - - 575 3,022 4177 100,845
At 31 December 2011  R=B——%&
t=ZA=1-AH
Cost iR 249,642 4,935 - 49,559 25,022 6,596 335,754
Accumulated g
amortisation - (4,935) - (19,978) (21,892) (2,419 (49,224)
Accumulated ZEtRESSE
impairment loss (156,571) - - (29,0006) (108) - (185,685)
Net book amount EmFE 93,071 - - 575 3,022 4177 100,845
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18 B|EEE @)
Patents and
capitalised
Customer software
listand development  In-progress
Goodwill Brand name  Licences  contracts costs  technology Total
ERREER
EFEE EAzu#
EES i faTiE RE# RERA  HEPRM EEY
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER FER TER TER TER
Year ended BE-Z2--f
31 December 2012 TZA=+-HLEE
Opening net book HEmFE

amount 93,071 - - 575 3,022 4,177 100,845
Acquisition of WEMB AT

subsidiaries (Wt 36)

(Note 36) 6,602 - 8,381 772 - - 15,755
Amortisation charge BT - - (1,747) (1,352) (2,877) (1,315) (7,291)
Impairment loss BEFE (24,600) - - - - - (24,600)
Exchange realignment  [E 5% (660) - 134 5 9 19 (511)
Closing net book

amount BAREEFE 74,413 - 6,768 - 136 2,881 84,198

At31 December 2012 R=-E-—%
t=A=1-A
Cost s 130,376 4,974 8,535 5,762 25,048 6,648 181,343
Accumulated Rt B

amortisation - @94 (1767 (762 (24912 (3767)  (41,182)
Accumulated ZEtRERR

impairment loss (55,963) - - - - - (55,963)
Net book amount FmEE 74,413 - 6,768 - 136 2,881 84,198

During the year, amortisation expense of HK$6,566,000 (2011:
HK$5,864,000) has been expensed in cost of sales and
HK$725,000 (2011: HK$9,943,000) in administrative expenses,

respectively.

FEREEEFG65660008T(ZF——
F 1 5,864,0007870) JTh R SHE K AN 85 &
725,000/ L ( = & — — £F : 9,943,000,8
TD)RITEE R
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified according
to operating segment. As at 31 December 2012, goodwill of
HK$61,215,000 (2011: HK$85,303,000) and HK$13,198,000
(2011: HK$7,768,000) are allocated to the electronic power
meters and solutions segment, and arising from the acquisition
of Merchant Support Co., Ltd (“Merchant Support”) and MS Car
Credit Co., Ltd (formerly known as “ITC Credit Co., Ltd.”)
(“MSCC") (the “provision of payment settlement services
business in Japan”), respectively.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on the
higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use
calculation.

Due to the continuous loss suffered by the electronic power
meters and solutions segment, goodwill of approximately
HK$24,600,000 was considered impaired by the management
on this segment during the six months ended 30 June 2012,
after taking into account the operating environment and market
conditions at that point of time. The key assumptions used in
calculating the recoverable amount of the CGU as at 30 June
2012 were as follows:

Gross margin F xR
Compound annual growth rate BAFHRER
Pre-tax discount rate FATARIR &

For the purpose of annual impairment tests for goodwill,
management prepared its pre-tax cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period. Management prepared its budget within the five-
year period using the estimated growth rates stated below. 3%
and 1% growth rate is used to extrapolate cash flows beyond
the five-year period for the electronic power meters and
solutions segment and the provision of payment settlement
services business in Japan, respectively. The growth rate does
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the respective
countries.

18

Ak v S A Bk

BILEE @)

PR (E e
AEEREBSERBHBN 2 AEER
SCELBMN R-T——F+-fF=1—
B &%61,2150008 (=T ——F:
85,303,0007% 70) 513,198,000/ L (=&
——4 17,768,000 L) DRI B EE 8
ATEERMERSTRSE  DRIREWE
Merchant Support Co. Ltd ([ Merchant
Support]) & MS Car Credit Co., Ltd (A%
[ITC Credit Co., Ltd.]) (IMSCC]) ([ B
TR M EE RG] -

R EL BNz T EREER D FER
HERFEFEREENRSEZHHEE

EE T2 MRS RO ERFESRGEE
AREBERZEERERMNE  BEZST
——HFRNA=THLERER WoEZHE
£4924,600,0008 T EWERERARE °
ERSELAEUR T ——F A=+
Hz el eEmAE2/EmT :

20-22%
30%
19%

ATEFERERENRBEN  TRERE
itz AF ST RBERFERBAIRS
METEN - EEERENAFHAEER
KATl g REET - AFHERS
REBZEERD B ABBEAEERLER
FRUARRBARERZ XN EERBER
HE B3% 1% - BWREDFITEHBAT
BFIERRORBFHEEER -
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18

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment tests for goodwill (Continued)
The key assumptions used for calculations in 2012 and 2011

are as follows:

Electronic power meters and solutions segment:

18

BILEE®)

AERERAR ()

TG R-T——FHEEMEA
BIRRR T -

EHABRERRBRARIE

2012 2011

—F-=F —T—%F

Gross margin FEFE 23-29% 20-25%

Compound annual growth rate BEFHEREK 35% 30%

Pre-tax discount rate FATALIR & 20% 19.18%
Provision of payment settlement services business in Japan REBXRRHZISEEREEL

2012 2011

=F-=F —T—F

Compound annual growth rate BEFIEREEX 20% 30%

Pre-tax discount rate TR ATRL IR & 21% 29%

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past ERERBBERARREHMAERE A

performance and its expectations of the market development.
The compound annual growth rates used are consistent with
the forecasts of the market. The discount rate used is pre-tax
and reflects specific risks relating to the segment.

For the electronic power meters and solutions segment, the
recoverable amount calculated based on value-in-use exceeded
carrying value as at 31 December 2012. A reduction in
compound annual growth rate to 23% would remove the
remaining headroom.

For the provision of payment settlement services business in
Japan, the recoverable amount calculated based on value-in-
use exceeded carrying value as at 31 December 2012. A
decrease in compound annual growth rate to 18% would
remove the remaining headroom.

HEEREEMNE - fIRAZEAFIER
KEMIGER—H - FIRA 2RI/
Al - RER D RBARRE 2 B E R -

BRFAEEMMEARTRIBAME - &R
EREEFESHZATRESEBHN -
E-_HF+-_A=t—BZKHEE -EE
FRERMADE23% IR HERIRELR -

R AREHRZ AN EERBEBMS
REABEAENTRESEBEN _-F
——HFt+t-A=t—BZKHEE EEF
ERETHRE18% G HKRTIHE -
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19 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 19

The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets include equity

AHHESHEE

AEEAHEESHEERERAES -

securities with the following details: BT
Group Company
rEH NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—F-=-F ¥ % =B--f T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FET FHERT FAET
At 1 January Rn—H—H 23,800 23,500 23,800 23,500
Acquisition of a subsidiary U 8 — IR B A |
(Note 36(b)) (Kizt36(b)) 6,106 - - -
Fair value (loss)/gain on B AFEER)
revaluation Wiz (2,751) 300 (3,000) 300
Exchange realignment P& 112 - - -
At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—8H 27,267 23,800 20,800 23,800
Unlisted investments outside EBBEINZIELETRE
Hong Kong 27,267 23,800 20,800 23,800

The carrying amounts of the available-for-sale financial assets

At ESREEZREETATIIER

are denominated in the following currencies: HIME :
Group Company
REE NN
As at 31 December As at 31 December
Rt=ZA=+—8H Rt=—A=+—H
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—-F —E——F ZE-—-F5 —ZE—
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET T FET FHET
RMB AR 6,467 - - -
US$ ETT 20,800 23,800 20,800 23,800
27,267 23,800 20,800 23,800

The fair value of unlisted securities are based on future free
cash flows attributable to shareholders discounted using a
discount rate based on the risk free interest rate and the risk
premiums attributable to the underlying investment.

FLmEHRZAFERRBEBRREGERK
AEAZIRERERAERR N E AR
MIRERE < AREERRFHE
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20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND DUE 20 RMIBARZRERER FE
FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES F B N B FRIE
Company
RAT
As at 31 December
R+=—RA=+—H
2012 2011
—E-C—F —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
Investments at cost, unlisted shares LT - RIWE A 851,737 755,737
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note (a)) FEUR BT A F) R (KTt (a) 445,373 310,247
Less: Provision for impairment B R E R (39,695) (39,695)
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 405,678 270552
Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note (a)) JE AT B /B8 X B FRIE (Y72 (a) 568,834 528,839
The investments in group undertakings are recorded at cost, REBEEB 2 RERRAE - EXNHRE
which is the fair value of the consideration paid. 2N TERH ©
Note: Bt
(a):  The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free, and repayable (@) HEBARZKALHRAERR RERARR

on demand.

®
EEEN -
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND DUE 20 AMBRARIZREREY BN
FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) Bt 8 A R FUIE (40)
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 RZE—ZF+ZA=+—H ' xZHB
December 2012: NRIZZEMT
Place of incorporation and Principal activities and Particulars of issued share Interest
Name type of legal entity place of operation capital/registered capital held
#B ERRIBHRECERER TEEBRERDE BRITRE/EMEREE iigs: &3
Beijing Hi Sun Advanced Business Solutions PRC, limited liability company Provision of financial solutions, HK$100,000,000 100%'
Information Technology Limited T BRAA services and related products 100,000,000/ 7T
tREREERERIARAT in PRC
EhRERHERBATRRBRABER
Beijing Hi Sunsray Information Technology PRC, limited liability company Provision of telecommunication HK$80,000,000 91%'
Limited FE - BBRAR solutions, and operation 80,000,000 70
tREHEERERRNERAR value-added services in PRC
EHERHERRATRRESEERYE
Hangzhou PAX Electronic Technology Limited ~ PRC, limited liability company Manufacturing and sales of electronic - RMB53,400,000 100%!
MNEEEFRMERATE FE - BBRAF power meters and solutions in PRC A& 53,400,0007C
EHRAERHEREERR
BATR
Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT Limited PRC, limited liability company Provision of mobile payment solutions  HK$20,000,000 91%'
HEREREBERRITERAR FE - BRAF and services in PRC 20,000,000 7T
ERERHEFRINRAT R LIRS
! Shares held indirectly by the Company. 1 KATEEERERRG o
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY 21 R—REES AT RS
Group Company
&K RRQF]
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F-=F T % =B-=-F T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FiB FET FiB T
At 1 January ®n—A—H 1,373,366 1,285,714 316,862 316,862
Share of profit FE(E %A 73,616 77,809 - -
Share of other comprehensive  JE{f E b 2 F Uk a5
income 2,717 11,728 - -
Share of other reserve FE(R E AL 8,720 - - -
Dilution of interest in an R QRS
associated company ZEE - (1,885) - -
At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—H 1,458,419 1,373,366 316,862 316,862
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21

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY 21 R—EBME QR 2R (5
(Continued)

The results of the associated company of the Group, which is KEBREBE LM ZBERNRZEENE
listed in Hong Kong, and its aggregated assets and liabilities, WEERBEHIOT

are set out below:

Place of incorporation Particular of issued Effective
Name and type of legal entity  share capital Assets Liabilities Turnover Profit interest held
SE A S 4t B FEEZ
=z REEERER BRITRAFE BE ffE EES R B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TEL TET TET
31 December 2012
—E2--5+=ZA=t-H
PAX Global Bermuda, limited 1,037,728,000 ordinary 2,193,760 382,926 1,313,330 182,959 42.8%
BERK liability company shares of HK$0.1 each
BRE  ARAF 1,037,728,000 & & i

E{E0.1/8 Tz E@mAk

31 December 2011
—Z——%+=-HA=+—-H

PAX Global Bermuda, limited 1,037,728,000 ordinary 2,006,038 404,884 1,103,180 181,795 42.8%
BERK liability company shares of HK$0.1 each
BEE  BRAA 1,037,728,000 i &A%
EE0.1 BT EER

As at 31 December 2012, the fair value of the Group’s interest NZE——F+-_FB=+—H KEHH
in PAX Global Technology Limited (“PAX Global”), which is BEBXEEAERATNTEEZSEI]
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, was (EERBHMARZMABRAR EM)ERE
HK$710,400,000 (2011: HK$728,160,000) and the carrying AF (B /710,400,000 87T (= F ——4
amount of the Group’s interest was HK$1,458,419,000 (2011: 728,160,000 7T ) 4 &£ [ # 25 &
HK$1,373,366,000). BREI{E A& 1,458,419,0008 T ( ZFB—— :

1,373,366,000/87C) °

Impairment test for interest in an associated company A —EBE QR ER 2R ERR

As at 31 December 2012, the fair value of the investment is less RZE——F+-_A=+—H BEAQAF
than its carrying value. An impairment test is performed to BEEREREE - DETREANAUETE
determine the recoverable amount of the investment. The HENRWE S5 - JiOE5EIRN_-F
recoverable amount calculated based on value-in-use exceeded ——F+ A=+ HBHEREMNEHR

the carrying value as at 31 December 2012. BETE -
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INVENTORIES 22. BE
Group
REHE
As at 31 December
Rt+t=A=+—H
2012 2011
—E-—F —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Raw materials R 40,565 45,565
Work-in-progress ER G 6,170 4,386
Finished goods 2K T 34,575 71,801
81,310 121,752

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in
cost of sales amounted to HK$288,644,000 (2011:
HK$424,371,000), which included provision for inventories of
HK$14,541,000 (2011: write back of provision for inventories
of HK$5,784,000).

The gross amount of inventories carried at net realisable value
amounted to approximately HK$28,008,000 (2011:
HK$13,202,000) as at 31 December 2012. Full provision has
been made with regard to these balances.

WRAERI RETAHEXN RN FERK AN E
288,644,000 L( = T — — F:
424,371,000 7T ) B ¥E T EHE & #
14,541,000 (ZE——F : FERED#E
1%5,784,000787CT) °

R-_E——F+_A=+—H " KA#ER
FEY R 2 FE BT /28,008,000 T
—ZF——4:13,202,000/87T) * WE
SRR IE L 2 BB -
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23 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 23 BEWRERHEMERRIE B
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS REREZE
Group Company
AEHE PN
As at 31 December As at 31 December
BR+=—RA=+—H R+=A=+—H
2012 2011 2012 2011

=F-=F —_T——F ZT-=F —T——F
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET THT TET AT

Current portion B
Trade receivables (Note (a))  FEURBRFK (A1t (a)) 468,281 384,905 - -
Bills receivables (Note (b)) FEN IR (BT (b)) 5,415 - - -
Less: provision for impairment g : FEUWGRIE BB H& (23,522) (21,248) - -
of receivables (H1et )
(Note (c))
450,174 363,657 - -
Prepayments, deposits and FNRIE - Re
other receivables: Ko E A RO
Prepayments TEfFFOE 8,949 16,302 562 551
Deposits b 16,476 16,632 - -
Others Hith 69,410 44,754 901 963
545,009 441,345 1,463 1,514
Non-current portion FEENHAER
Long-term deposits RHER® 2,563 2,839 - -

Total &t 547,572 444,184 1,463 1,514
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 23 BURFERHEAMmERRE - A
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued) RERES (@)
The carrying amounts are approximately their fair values. The RAEHEEANTERS - AEE 2 ERER
carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables, TR EHM WA ENZERERRS
prepayments and long-term deposits are denominated in the ZEREETIATHEETIE
following currencies:
Group Company
AEH PN
As at 31 December As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+—H R+=-—A=+-—H
2012 2011 2012 2011
—®-—f -T——4F —B--§ —T——%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET FHET FHET
HK$ BT 6,328 6,696 562 1,514
RMB AR 415,404 294,176 - -
us$ e - 3,136 - -
JPY HIE 123,342 140,176 901 —
Macanese pataca (“MOP”) SRPIEE (DRI ) 2,498 - - -
547,572 444,184 1,463 1,514
Note (a): M (a) -
Trade receivables FEW R

The Group'’s credit terms to trade debtors range from 0 to 180 days. The ageing
analysis of the trade receivables was as follows:

AEEGTESEFAZGEEHHOE180H TS - &
WERR Z BRER DTN T

As at 31 December

Wt+=—A=+—H
2012 2011
B —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Current to 90 days BIEAZ= 90 H 392,276 259,240
91 to 180 days 91£180H 10,499 19,114
181 to 365 days 181 %365 H 10,906 63,780
Over 365 days 365 H LA E 54,600 42,771
468,281 384,905

As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables included retention money receivables
of HK$68,560,000 (2011: HK$71,439,000), which represents approximately 10%
to 20% (2011: approximately 10% to 20%) of the relevant contract sum granted
to certain customers in the PRC that have a retention period of normally one year.
As at 31 December 2012, the retention money receivables aged over 365 days
amounted to HK$39,592,000 (2011: HK$33,373,000).

RZTE—ZF+ZA=+—08 BEUEHEEKRE
% 68,560,000 7T (ZF ——4 : 71,439,00047C) * 14
BYETHREREFPEBAEOREH10%E20%(ZF
——F : H10%E20%)  ZFEEFHRELR —RA
—F R T—FF+-A=+—H " EKEB365H
LA F &) fE IR B € 539,592,000 T ( =& — —F ¢
33,373,000/87L) °
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23

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

23

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Note (a): (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of

independent customers that have a good track record with the Group. Based on

past experience, management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary

in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit

quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does

not hold any collateral over these balances.

As of 31 December 2012, trade receivables of HK$39,664,000 (2011:
HK$75,615,000) were past due but not impaired. The ageing analysis of these

trade receivables is as follows:

FEWFERHEMERRE - FES
RERZEE (@)

Mzt (a) - (&)

FEW R (48)

BHMERSEERTRSNE TEAEEERIFRS
R BURP  ENBELR  ZHNBFPZEEE
EARBAEARB  BRFRERNDAZEEY - HE
EERRTHEERZEEBRIERELER - AEEWE
ERZSRETIRSSI BRI -

5

AZT—ZFF+ZA=+—8  EUREEF39,664,000%
TL(ZF——% 175,615,000/ 7T) Jy@ B RRE - %
SRMEERZRRANIAT

As at 31 December

Rt+=A=+—8H
2012 2011
—EB-—F =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Up to 90 days BIEAZE 90 H - -
91 to 180 days 91£180H 3,586 8,329
181 to 365 days 181 %365 H 5,000 45,763
Over 365 days 365 HEA L 31,078 21,523
39,664 75,615
Note (b): Btatb) -
Bills receivables EHREE
The balance represents bank acceptance notes with maturity dates within six FEEHIET A RONER Z RITERERE -
months.
The maturity profile of the bills receivable of the Group is as follows: REEFEUREZ ZISBERMT
As at 31 December
W+=A=+-H
2012 2011
—E——F —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Falling within 90 days 90HA 248 -
Falling within 91 to 180 days 912180 H 5,167 -

5,415
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Note (c):

Provision for impairment of receivables

As of 31 December 2012, trade receivables of HK$23,522,000 (2011:
HK$21,248,000) were impaired. These impaired receivables mainly relate to
individual customers who are delinquent in payment. The ageing of these
receivables is as follows:

23

Aok 1 WA 5 0 % B ik

ERREREMERRE - BN
RERES (@)

Hiit (o)

FEWRERER A
RZT——F+ZA=+—8 ' ERERF23,522,000%
TL(ZF——% 121,248,000/ 7T) CRME - ZEERE
fEM R IEE ZRERRFIENET P AR - 25 EIER
K2R AITAT -

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-—H
2012 2011
—E-——F —ZT——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
91 to 180 days 91£180H - -
181 to 365 days 181 %365 H - -
Over 365 days 365 HEA 23,522 21,248
23,522 21,248

Movement on the provision for impairment of receivables are as follows: W EREREESIT

2012 2011
—E-_F —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
At 1 January n—A—H 21,248 19,333
Provision for impairment of trade receivables UL IE B B 2,158 1,458
Exchange realignment [ 5 J9 % 116 457
At 31 December R+—-—A=+—8 23,522 21,248

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired
assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of
each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

E AR FEUART R Bt R SR R B R R E A E -

N¥fE B HMEY 2 & AEERR T DS 8RR
ZRREE - AREW S T ERRIERER -
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24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 24 BAFEFAGHRNGEZER
PROFIT OR LOSS EE
Group Company
KEE P NN
As at 31 December As at 31 December
®n+=—B=+—H R+=ZBA=+—H
2012 2011 2012 2011
=B-=F _—T——F ZE-=ZF _T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT FET FET
Listed securities: EWmES
— Equity securities — AR
— United States (“U.S.”) — [ ([ )) 598 495 598 495
— Equity securities — RARE
— Hong Kong (“H.K.”) — E5B5(EE] 13,350 - 13,350 -
Unlisted securities: IS
Collective investment scheme &£4%&=tE
— PRC — - 9,996 - -
Total N 13,948 10,491 13,948 495
Market value of listed securities /A mE 13,948 495 13,948 495

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented
in operating activities as part of changes in working capital in

the consolidated cash flow statement (Note 32(a)).

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded as other gains/(losses), net, in the

consolidated income statement (Note 5).

The fair values of listed securities are based on their current bid
price in active market. The fair values of unlisted securities
were held in last year based on current bid price from banks.

BRHEF RN RBERZEBMEETIRN
FAREREREINREERL  FRE
EBE2HNEH (MFE32() °

BRFEFABHIEBRZEBREENF
B2 NEARaERTHEASHEMEK
=/ (B518) %5 (IREs5) -

EHRHFNAFERBEEEERTISNE
BEABFNE EFRAZIFLTESFH
RFEARBRITABENEANBE -
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25 SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS 25 JEHISRITER
Short-term bank deposits of HK$19,574,000 (2011: Nil) HERSR 1T F 019,574,000 (=& ——
represented bank deposits of the Group which are placed as FE)EASERRARHAS=EA N
guaranteed deposits for bills payables with original maturities FrRNRBEMFERERS ZRITFR
over three months and are denominated in RMB. WIAARETIE -
They are kept in the bank accounts opened with banks in the ZEGFARDERRNEF BRITHL 2 ]IT
PRC where the remittance of funds is subject to foreign BRPR MABES ZMNENDZEIINEE
exchange control. il o
26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26 RERAELEEY
Group Company
REE AT
As at 31 December As at 31 December
Rt=—RA=+—~H Rt=—A=t+—~H
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B--F %% ZB--Ff —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET THET FHET
Cash at bank and on hand ROIEFRRFERS 794,195 1,167,201 4,147 255,531

Balance of HK$8,635,000 (2011: HK$10,553,000) represented
bank deposits of the Group which are placed as guaranteed
deposits for bills payables or deposits designated for settlement
of certain payables with original maturities within three months
and are denominated in RMB.

Funds of the Group amounting to approximately
HK$401,978,000 (2011: HK$430,542,000) are kept in the bank
accounts opened with banks in the PRC where the remittance
of funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

H 18,635,000 (ZF——4F : 10,553,000
L) IEAEERRAREAA=MA UK
CENZEMGEIERERS K AL T RN
RBIEABEGRZRITER  TUAR
¥E3IME -

NEE 2 B #1401,978,000/8 L (==
——%F 1 430,542,000 70) * I TF A E
FEZIBITHAM ZRITEEFPAN MBME
& 2 (NIETYZ B INEE B
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26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 26 REeRAEEEYW @
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following R RRSEEWATIEEE -
currencies:
Group Company
rEE AAT
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H W+=—A=+—H
2012 2011 2012 2011

—E--F —ET——F ZB-=-F Z—ZT——%*
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET TFET

HK$ BT 238,144 298,860 3,054 221,425
RMB AR 262,441 417,662 - -
uUs$ E7T 165,381 327,809 876 29,817
JPY H 123,382 122,661 217 4,289
Euro BT 213 209 - -
MOP JRPIEE 4,634 - - -

794,195 1,167,201 4,147 255,531

27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 B

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.0025 each

SREE0.00258 T Z
ZER
No. of shares HK$’000
I &4 FHET
Authorised: JEIE
As at 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 WZZE——F—HA—81 "
and 31 December 2012 —E——F+-_A=+—HK

—E—=—F+=ZA=+—H  4,000,000,000 10,000

Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR

As at 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011
and 31 December 2012

RZE——F—H—H"
—E——F+Z/A=+—HK
—E——F¥+=-A=+—H 2,673,429,835 6,684
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27 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

Share options of the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme 2011 (the “Scheme”) for
the purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating talented employees in
order to strive for future developments and expansion of the Group.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Group’s full-time
employees, and Executive and non-Executive Directors. The Scheme
became effective on 29 April 2011 and unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years from that
date.

The share option scheme for the Company and its subsidiaries which was
adopted by the Company at its special general meeting on 29 November
2001 was terminated on 29 April 2011.

During the year ended 31 December 2011 and 2012, no share option was
granted. As at 31 December 2011 and 2012, there is no share option
outstanding.

Employees’ incentive programme

On 1 September 2011, Mega Hunt Microelectronics Limited (“Mega Hunt
Microelectronics”), an indirectly owned subsidiary of the Group entered
into six option deeds with certain of directors and employees of Mega
Hunt Microelectronics and its subsidiary. 3,500,000 ordinary shares of
Mega Hunt Microelectronics may be issued upon the exercise of all
options granted under the option deeds at an exercise price of HK$1.00
per share. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the option deeds will
lapse on 1 September 2014.

The option deeds are designed to provide incentive to employees for their
contribution to Mega Hunt Microelectronics. Under the option deeds,
50% of the options shall vest upon the expiry of a period of 12 months
from the date of the option deeds; and the balance of 50% of the options
shall vest upon the expiry of a period of 24 months from the date of the
option deeds. Prior to exercise of the option, the option holders are not
entitled to dividends. There are also no accelerated vesting rights in case
of winding of Mega Hunt Microelectronics.

Up to the date of this report, no options were exercised. Employee share
options expenses of HK$79,000 (2011: HK$33,000) was recognised in the
consolidated income statement during the year.

27
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IRA ()

ez

@

(b)

FRRZBRE

RRRNEF BT —— FREER 8 (5%
2 BERS|  BERABES HER A
B AR QR ERRIEFTE - ZatBINAER
2BECFENEENZBIE 8 A RNTRIEAT
BF BRI —FOAZTAEER
BRIERZATBIBUESIERT - TRIGMZ AR+
DRBRBAER

ARAR-BE—F+—-AZ T B ZREREHI
RERM 2 AREREM B A REREABIER
—E—FOAZtARKRL-

REBEE-_T——F kT —-F+=-A=+—8
IEFE - BES D ERE R ——F R
ZEZHF+ZA=1T—8 BEMKTEZE
B #E -

EEEmTE

R-T——FNA—H  AEENEEHEQR
KA EF AR AR ([JEFMEF 1) EIKFRE
BEFREMBARE TEERIEET I AMDER
TR Y% © 3,500,000 A% JK AN 1K B F 3 AR AT AR
BRI R A BRI EEER
1.00B T EITHERETT - R B AT HIERT &
Gh o BRERESR T —NFALA BRI -

BEEZEDRAESRESEIANETZE
BRI R - RIREEIERE - 50% BHE
S EBRERE R R 12EAMBERRR
& ¢ 82T 50% MR I & BB AR R R B B A
246 A HR fEm % B8 - WA AT A - BB
MERERs B NSRRI - MKIMEFBE -
TR NN B B R o

HEAREAH TEBRZOETE - RE
A - BRRA G R iR E 8 BRI 52 79,000
BT (ZZF——% :33,000%87T) °
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28 RESERVES

(@)

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

28 f#f
Group @ &£
Contributed
Share surplus Other  Exchange  Retained
premium  (Note(i)) reserves reserve  earnings Total
EQa%
BDEE  (WiEe) HtRE  EXRE  REEN AFf
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TER TR FER TER
At 1 January 2011 R=B--%-A-8 930,020 168,434 533,412 104,393 1,307,517 3,043,776
Loss for the year FEBE - - - - (255493)  (255,493)
Exchange differences arising on BEBINHBAR
translation of the financial BHHRE L
statements of foreign subsidiaries 5 ES - - - 30,168 - 30,168
Fair value gain on revaluationof ~ EfFEHESREE
available-for-sale financial asset PANEELG - - 300 - - 300
Share of other comprehensive income [&{fi— & A7) 2 E
of an associated company (Note 21) 2 E Yz (H3721) - - - 11,728 - 11,728
Transfer of additional interest of EZ-HNBART
a subsidiary to non-controlling FEERIER 2B
interest ey - - (26,678) - - (26,678)
Deemed disposal of interests in RELE-FRHEAR
a subsidiary R - - 2,476 - - 2,476
Employees’ incentive programme of —fiE AR 2 EE
a subsidiary R - - 26 - - 26
At 31 December 2011 R-B-—-&
+=f=+-A 930,020 168434 509536 146289 1,052,024 2,806,303
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28 RESERVES (Continued)

(@)

28 f#fE (@)
Group (Continued) @ XK&EBE)
Contributed
Share surplus Other  Exchange  Retained
premium  (Note(i))  reserves reserve earnings Total
B4BH
RGEE (WEd) BttRE  EXRE  REEF &5t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TR TiER TR TR
At 1 January 2012 RZE-Zf-A-H 930,020 168,434 509,536 146,289 1,052,024 2,806,303
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (160,763)  (160,763)
Exchange differences arising on BEBMNBAR - - - 3,388 - 3,388
translation of the financial HkEEN £
statements of foreign subsidiaries
Fair value loss on revaluation of B HE - - (2,774) - - (2,774
available-for-sale financial assets ~ &@EE 2 AT EHE
Share of other comprehensive income fEfs— B E A 5 2 - - - 2,717 - 2,717
of an associated company (Note 21) 2 E Yz (H3£21)
Acquisition of 20% equity interest in - YtBE — M B2 Al - - (38257 - - (38257
a subsidiary (Note 35) 20% 3 (fif1 35)
Share of other reserve of an associated fEf5—fEli< AR 2 - - 8,720 - - 8,720
company (Note 21) HinGhtE(h21)
Employees’ incentive programme of  —Fif{BAR Z(EE - - 77 - - 77
a subsidiary HE]
At 31 December 2012 R-B-ZF
+=B=+-8 930,020 168434 477,302 152394 891,261 2,619,411
Notes: et -

(i)

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares and share
premium account of Hi Sun Holdings Limited (“HSHL”) acquired
pursuant to the Group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 17
October 2001 as set out in the circular to the shareholders of
HSHL dated 9 August 2001, over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof.

PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the companies’
net profit to a statutory reserve fund until such fund reaches 50%
of the companies’ registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can
be utilised upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset
accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of the
companies, provided that such fund is maintained at a minimum
of 25% of the companies’ registered capital. As at 31 December
2012, retained earnings comprise of statutory reserve fund
amounting to HK$43,708,000 (2011: HK$43,708,000).

(i)

(i)

TEE 2 EHRBREASHBEZERERR
A EEERDBERFEARA-_ZF
—FNANBZBRFAE  RBEK-F
E-F+tAtERETZERAEA(E
APz sBER EBREER
Bt ERR - BARR U R BB
IR (B 258

REREBEG ARG Z10%HEE
REFRECEEURBEEEAAGE
MEXZ50%  EEFEREBBER
L% A RIS R AT IB S MR A
ZHAMER  mEAEHeREAEFR
AREMERZ 25%KF - R=ZT—=
FE+-B=+—0 RBENEE:T
S 43,708,000 L (=T ——4F :
43,708,000 7T) °



148 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bk B T 5 3 0 B i

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

28 RESERVES (Continued) 28 f#fE@®
(b) Company (b) ADFH
Share  Contributed Other Accumulated
premium surplus reserves losses Total
RAEE BB Hibf#E 2EHER B3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL FHEL FAEL T FHEL
At 1 January 2011 R-ZE--F-f-H 1,157,724 46,417 34,323 (104,780) 1,133,684
Loss for the year EEER - - - (16,562) (16,562)
Fair value gain on revaluation of BfAMESHEEL
available-for-sale financial asset NFEWE (W 19)
(Note 19) - - 300 - 300
At 31 December 2011 R-B——F
+zA=+-A 1,157,724 46,417 34623 (121342) 1,117,422
At 1 January 2012 R-B-—%-f-A 1,157,724 46,417 34623 (121,342) 1,117,422
Loss for the year FEER - - - (55,289) (55,289)
Fair value loss on revaluation of BRATEHNESHEE
available-for-sale financial assets ZRTERR
(Note 19) (t19) - - (3,000 - (3,000)
At 31 December 2012 R-B-Z%
+=p=t-8 1,157,724 46,417 31,623 (176,631) 1,059,133
Note: Hiat -

(i) The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of
the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to
the Reorganisation over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange thereof. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, a company may make distributions to its members
out of the contributed surplus under certain circumstances.

ARR . BEHASREREEAPTKE 2
B A B R FEEA R R R
ZBETRMEEZZE - REBRE
—HNN—FREE - REAATEETHER
THEE AR AR R B SRR A T LR R
HAIK ©
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29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 29 BENRARRHEMmESRIE
Group Company
AEE AT
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R+=A=+-8 R+=—A=+-8H
2012 2011 2012 2011

—2——F ZT——F =—E-—=-F =ZFT—F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TAT FERT TET
Trade payables (Note (a)) eI RRR (M3 (@) 207,102 232,417 - -
Bills payable (Note (b)) JERTZE (M7t b)) 39,479 18,290 - -
Other payables and accruals — Efth i (< 708 K g 5
(Note (c)) B (Mt () 251,884 172,400 9,373 1,952
498,465 423,107 9,373 1,952
Trade and other payables are denominated in the following FE < BR 2k K% L JRE < B IE JB LA T Bl S S B
currencies: 8 :
Group Company
REE RRF]
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H R+=ZA=+t—H
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--f —F——% CZEBE--f —T——%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAT FERT TET
HK$ BT 16,432 8,056 9,373 1,952
RMB AR 404,751 330,503 - -
us$ e 156 156 - -
JPY H 77,126 84,392 - -

498,465 423,107 9,373 1,952
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29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 29 BEMRRARRE b FR (@)
Note (a): Krit () :
Trade payables FEATERRR
At 31 December 2012, the ageing analysis of the trade payables was as follows: NZB——F+A=+—0  BNEXZE&EI TN
T
Group
FEE
As at 31 December
W+=A=+-—8
2012 2011
—E-CF —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current to 90 days BEFZE90H 163,663 151,170
91 to 180 days 912180 H 24,756 41,331
181 to 365 days 181 %365 H 7,278 31,394
Over 365 days 365 LA E 11,405 8,522
207,102 232,417
The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days. EHERR T ZEEHNT0E180 H 2 -
Note (b): Mzt b) -
Bills payables B RE
The balance represents bank acceptance notes: MREERIRITARGIES -
Group
TEE
As at 31 December
M+=A=+-—8
2012 2011
—E-——F —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Due within 90 days 90 A A £ Ef 14,065 18,290
Due within 91 to 180 days 91 %180 H W E|H3 25,414 -
39,479 18,290
Note (c): sz (o) -
Other payables and accruals H A FOR R SRR
Group Company
EE EAT
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R+=A=+-8 W+=A=+-8
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E——F T ——F —E——F —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FHET
Accrued staff costs and fEEHE TRA R
pension obligations RIKE K 97,709 75,545 8,191 544
Receipt in advance from customers FESE MR B A 29,101 46,585 - -
Others Hih 125,074 50,270 1,182 1,408
251,884 172,400 9,373 1,952
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30 BORROWINGS 30 fERK
Group
EE
As at 31 December
R+t=A=+—H
2012 2011
—2-CF —F—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Current BIER
Short-term bank loans EHIRITE R
— PRC, secured (Note) — B FIEA () - 23,445
Total borrowings fE R - 23,445
Movement in borrowings is analysed as follow: ERZEBH AT
2012 2011
—E—C—F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Opening balance as at 1 January R—RA—RZ Bk 23,445 22,490
Proceeds from borrowing tERPTISFIA 6,150 22,875
Repayment of borrowing BEEXR (29,352) (22,875)
Exchange difference = (243) 955
Closing balance as at 31 December W+=ZRA=+—H
2 BARAEER - 23,445
Note: Hiat -
The maturity of borrowings is as follows: fERZEIEBAMT
Group
*%m
As at 31 December
Rt+t=A=+—8
2012 2011
=F-=F —T—F
HK$'000 HK$/000
FET FHET

6 months to 1 year 618 HAZ=1F - 23,445
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30

31

BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Short term bank borrowings EEIRITER

30 fERAE)

Hiat - (#8)

WEF R ZBRFI=QT

Group

REE

As at 31 December
R+ZA=+—8H
2011

—B——F

% per annum
BE%

7.544%

The carrying amounts of the borrowings as at 31 December 2011 were
denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2012, banking facilities of RMB18,000,000 (approximately
HK$22,385,000) were secured by certain leasehold land and buildings of the
Group (Note 16 and 17).

As at 31 December 2011, bank borrowings and banking facilities of
RMB37,000,000 (approximately HK$45,650,000) were secured by certain
leasehold land and buildings of the Group (Note 16 and 17).

The carrying amounts of short-term borrowings approximate their fair values.

NZE——F+ZA=+—H EREAEAARED
&

MN-E——F+-_A=+—HB EITEEARYE
18,000,000 7T (4722,385,000/87T) * Tyl A% E % FH
Bt RIEBFEER (16 K% 17) ©

MZT——F+=A=+—8  RITERRBITEEA
R ¥ 37,000,000 7T (4945,650,000787C) + JhEALE@EE
FHE Ly RAEFIEEIE (16 1217) ©

G RREEERATERS -

DEFERRED INCOME TAX 31 BEREHR
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there EBAEMREINITENBREREEE
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against HEAENBAGBERY  BREEMEHT R
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate B — 8BRS - B EEFTIS T & E R
to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows: BEGAKE - KES|OT ¢
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H
2012 2011
—E-—F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets to be recovered 128 A &8 T#E 2
after 12 months BEXERIBEE (424) (543)
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled 121EA A2
within 12 months BEXERIBEE 1,097 1,002
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled 121@A%&EBHZ
after 12 months FEEFRIEEE 1,634 861
Deferred tax liabilities — net RLEBIEBE — F8 2,307 1,320
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction)

during the year is as follows:

31 EEFEHR @

FA - SHERRAERARRE C GHREHE
$HAT - BEHREERABZEFHOT

2012 2011
—E-CE —E——F
Accelerated Revaluation Accelerated  Revaluation
tax of intangible tax of intangible
depreciation assets Total depreciation assets Total
m& 31 il Ei5iA
WERE  BEEf &5 HENE  AEsf At
HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiEn TER TiEx TiEx TEx
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE
At 1 January w—A—8H 293 1,570 1,863 408 11,657 12,065
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 36(b)) Wi —TEMBRE (M 36() - 2,287 2,287 - - -
Credited to the consolidated income BiRAEREA
statement (121) (1,338) (1,459) (115) (10,348) (10,463)
Exchange realignment EHER - 40 40 - 261 261
At 31 December W+-A=+-A 172 2,559 2,731 293 1,570 1,863
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F
HK$/000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Deferred tax assets BEEREEE
At 1 January n—HA—H (543) (648)
Charged to the consolidated income statement B4RE W Rk 121 115
Exchange realignment bE SR EE (2) (10)
At 31 December R+—_BA=+—H (424) (543)
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31

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry forward
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through
the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2012,
the Group had unrecognised tax losses to be carried forward
against future taxable income amounted to HK$809,885,000
(2011: HK$600,451,000). These tax losses have no expiry date
except that HK$651,113,000 will expire from 2012 to 2018
(2011: HK$486,954,000 expire from 2012 to 2018). The
potential deferred tax assets in respect of these tax losses which
have not been recognised amounted to HK$162,685,000 (2011:
HK$118,675,000).

As at 31 December 2012, deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the withholding tax that would be payable on unremitted
earnings of certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounting to
approximately HK$26,555,000 (2011: HK$26,271,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

1IEEFRBH (@)

REMIBEEETAEARRHIER =48 Al s
ERABRERT TSR MM E R
HEEEFER R_ZT——F+=A
=t—B AEBEBEENIKERRBER
U 2 R R IAE 18 4 809,885,000 7
TT(=Z——4 : 600,451,000 7T ) > &
651,113,000 TR _TE—_F&=_F
—NFHERB®B ZFT — — F:
486,954,000 BILR T ——_FE2="F— )\
FEIRIER) 51 - ZF P EEI R E R B
Hl o Rtz S HIABERRAMNELIELE
B & E 5162,6850008 0 (—F——4
118,675,000 7T) °

R-ZT—=—F+=-A=+—8 BREAE
B s RO e =N E TR ER
ATBE NG A BAR R R - i AR A&
EETHEKNEATREZFNNEMNSTED
MR RGBSR EDRET BEELD
26,555,000 70 (=& ——%F : 26,271,000
BIT) e
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32 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 32 MEBRERERMT
STATEMENT
(@) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to net cash used (@ BRFASHABEESEMAZERS

in from operations

For the year ended
31 December

BEt+t-A=1+—RHLEE

2012 2011
—2-=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Loss before income tax Brin AT E R (175,360) (287,531)
Adjustments for: HEE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - /5 k& EITE 35,966 40,447
Depreciation of investment properties REMENE 172 150
Amortisation of leasehold land FHE 1 s 486 1,036 1,031
Amortisation of intangible assets A B 7,291 15,807
Share of profit of an associated company FEAE—REE R ENE (73,616) (77,809)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWME - BE REE
equipment Z W (240) (1,243)
Provision for impairment of trade receivables  FEURBR ZURE B8 2,158 1,458
Provision/(write back of provision) TFERE/(BEERE)
for inventories 14,541 (5,784)
Impairment of intangible assets BREERE 24,600 154,836
Loss on dilution of interests in = VNGIEdas
an associated company (g - 1,885
Employees incentive programme —FHfNEBARZEE
of a subsidiary RN 79 33
Interest income FEMA 4,911) (9,495)
Finance costs REKA 1,295 1,796
Operating loss before working capital changes @& 4285 2 KL E1E (166,989) (164,419)
Decrease in inventories FERD 26,402 58,419
(Increase)/decrease in long term deposits, REES - BUERR R
trade and other receivables, prepayments H b pEURSRIE - TEFRIE
and deposits Kiz& (&), ma (91,174) 49,832
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets AV ER Aa s EE
at fair value through profit or loss ZemEEGEM, R (4,201) 2,867
Increase in amount due from FEUL — B i N A
an associated company FRIAIE N 42) -
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables &1~ BR3¢ & B Ath &+ 5118
#4017 Cid) 65,225 (141,868)
Increase in amount due to JE At — fEHsE 2 2 A
an associated company FRIALE AN 4,037 -
Cash used in operations KERRAZIR® (166,742) (195,169)
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32

33

34

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 32 MEBREREBRME @
STATEMENT (Continued)
(b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of b)) RESHRERAN HEVE BER
property, plant and equipment comprise: RIBFREIREMT -
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2012 2011
—B-CF i
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FET
Net book amount (Note 16) BRTELFHE (Mt 16) 1,008 115
Gain on disposals of property, plant and HEWE - B NRE
equipment P E 240 1,243
Proceeds from disposals of property, plantand HEMYE - BiE R RE
equipment PR F0R 1,248 1,358
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33 HAREE

As at 31 December 2012, the Group and the Company had no
material contingent liabilities (2011: Nil).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases as follows:

W-_Z——fF+-A=+—0 F£EK
ARALBEARABE (=T ——F:
') °

REHARIE
R-ZEBE-——F+-_A=+—0 x£ER
T REEERYNBEB TN 2 ARFERE
FREEEBIAT -

Land and buildings

TRETF
As at 31 December
Rt+t=ZR=+—H

2012 2011
—E-CF —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Not later than one year THiBE1F 28,466 22,975
Later than one year and not later than five years #8381 F{BT#B1E5 F 19,896 28,433
48,362 51,408
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TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Transfer of additional interest of a subsidiary from non-
controlling interest

On 13 January 2012, the Company entered into conditional
sales and purchase agreements with Rich Giant Investment
Limited (“Rich Giant”) and Billion Rosy Limited (“Billion Rosy”)
to acquire from them the remaining 20% equity interest of New
Concept at an aggregate consideration of HK$96,000,000. The
transactions were approved by independent shareholders in a
special general meeting held on 24 February 2012. Upon
completion of the transaction, New Concept became a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company. The acquisition was
completed on 9 March 2012. The difference between the
consideration paid and the share of net asset value acquired of
HK$57,743,000, totalling HK$38,257,000, was recognised
within equity during the year ended 31 December 2012.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

(@ Acquisition of MS Car Credit Co., Ltd.

On 2 March 2012, Merchant Support Co., Ltd.
(“Merchant Support”), a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a conditional subscription agreement with IT
Cars Co., Ltd (“ITC”), a joint venture partner, pursuant to
which conditionally agreed to sell, and Merchant Support
conditionally agreed to purchase the remaining 67% of
the issued share capital of MS Car Credit Co., Ltd
(formerly known as “ITC Credit Co., Ltd”) (“MSCC”) at a
consideration of JPY70 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$6.7 million). Upon completion,
Merchant Support’s shareholding interest in MSCC
increased from 33% to 100% and MSCC became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. The acquisition
was completed on 5 March 2012. The acquisition is a
strategic move which is expected to potentially enable
the Group to gain further access in the payment service
industry in Japan.

35

36

Aok 1 WA 5 0 % B ik

EFERER RS

FEREZERE-BNBEARZEIMES

WZE——F—F+=H "  &~NQFHRich
Giant Investment Limited ([Rich Giantl) &
Billion Rosy Limited ([Billion Rosy]) & 32
ERHEEEHREARNBESWRBETAIGT
20%M A fEzm - #B{E R96,000,0008 7T °
ZERGENZZE——F-_A=+HHHE
TR R RSB R - 5
ERE TR ARAE ZE2ENBAT -
WBER-ZZE—Z—F=ANAREK - B
& B R (G AT U B & B JF (B 57,743,000 78
JCME Z %8 - #88(38,257,000/8 7T © B R E
E-ET-—HF+-A=F+-HILEECE
TR ©

EBast

(@) UBEMS Car Credit Co., Ltd.
RZZE——F=RA=H  ARalB
2~ A Merchant Support Co., Ltd.
([Merchant Support]) 81 & & 1T
Cars Co., Ltd. ([ITC)FT 2 B & 4R
B Bt 228 BKGERED
& T Merchant Support & (&1 R &
88 8 MS Car Credit Co., Ltd (AI#E [1ITC
Credit Co., Ltd]) (TMSCC) B #1TH%
A ER T 67% K18 570,000,000 H
[E (18 E 496,700,000/ 7T) ° FEHK
1% » Merchant Support /¥ MSCC &) #3
% 4 %5 B3 33% 48 2 100% * MSCC
MKARSEENZEMB AR - Ik
ERZZTE——F=ZARBATK - &K
BRIETTE) - FHAIG A IR AR S
EfE— I A BRI IRIEITE ©



158

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bk B T 5 3 0 B i

36 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(@)

Acquisition of MS Car Credit Co., Ltd. (Continued)

36 ¥(BE/teE)

(@ Y EEMS Car Credit Co., Ltd. (#&)

The following table summarises the consideration paid TREMAKE B ELAHEN
for the business combination and the amounts of the RE CHEIZDUBEENREAER
assets acquired and liabilities assumed recognised as at BB MEXREELAEELEIR
the acquisition date. No gain or loss was recognised in MSCC P sn FERR &S ©

relation to the Group’s previously held interest in MSCC.

HK$'000
THET
Purchase consideration: BERE
— Cash paid —EfNRE 6,650
Total purchase consideration BEAEAR 6,650
Fair value
DFE
HK$'000
THETT
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets ARAERBEENREAERE
acquired and liabilities assumed ZEHREH
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEHEY 107
Other receivables Hofth & 3K 15
Accruals and other payables JEGHE B M E At R FRIR (74)
Total identifiable net assets A BRI A AR ER 48
Goodwill EES 6,602
HK$’000
T
Acquisition-related costs included in administrative  UBEHARARK NG AF R 2 4R A Wz R
expenses in the consolidated income statement ZITBAX
for the year 152
The goodwill is attributable to the synergies expected to AERAAEEYELHEANRER
arise after the Group’s acquisition of this subsidiary. None HREE £ 2 W RIS e - FEERME AR B RERR
of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible PR A B IAFUR PSR -

for income tax purposes.
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36 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(@ Acquisition of MS Car Credit Co., Ltd. (Continued)

Aok 1 WA 5 0 % B ik

36 ¥(BE/teE)

(@ Y EEMS Car Credit Co., Ltd. (&)

HK$'000
TET
Outflow of cash to acquire business, BRI BB ER - HIkRAT
net of cash acquired WERE
Cash consideration ReNRE 6,650
Less: cash and cash equivalents in W PTEINE R R 2 R e &
subsidiary acquired REEED (107)
Net cash outflow on acquisition WHEE A+ 2 R Rt F R 6,543

(b)

(i) Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed revenue of
JPY77,196,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$7,480,000) and net profit of JPY6,187,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$600,000) to the
Group for the period from 5 March 2012 to 31
December 2012. If the acquisition had occurred on
1 January 2012, consolidated revenue and
consolidated net loss of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2012 would have been
HK$868,308,000 and HK$174,807,000,
respectively.

Acquisition of t R AK S BEERMAERA A

On 27 June 2012, the Group entered into certain
contractual agreements with the registered owners of 3t
A 5 B {5 2 5 B BR 2 7 (“Ronglian”), pursuant to
which the Group has obtained 100% control of Ronglian,
including 100% of its voting rights, the power to govern
its financial and operating policies and the power to
appoint or remove the majority of the members of its
board of directors at a consideration of RMB10 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$12.2 million). In
addition, such contractual agreements also transfer all
risks and rewards of Ronglian’s underlying business to the
Group. Consequently, Ronglian has been accounted for
as a subsidiary of the Group.

(b)

i WAREFIEE
RE-_ZE——_F=-ARARZE_
T+ -A=+—HIHH
M- BWEEBRAQFER
W A77,196,000 B [El (18 & %
497,480,000 7T ) & OF F E
6,187,000 EI( #H & » &
600,000 7T) ° R WHER =
T-ZF-A—RA%4E - AE
EE-——_F+-A=+—H
IEFEREE 2456 WA R4
EFEBBEIFREHE Y NA
868,308,000 T X
174,807,000 78 7T °

BBt RS EEERMERATE
RoB——F X A-++H K&EE
B mAH 5 W E BRI AR A A
(TR 2aMEE AGILET
AERHE - Bl AEEESIERA
5 100% 1% 6l # - B35 H 100% =R
W FEERE RS EBER A&
ZHAREREFSLHNE  RE
A A R #10,000,0007C (18 & R 4
12,200,000 7T ) © AN - s F AL
BHEITBIE R A E T EBRE 2
EoE e & I shEE = AR E o ALt - db
RABIEAEE 2B RRIAK -
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36 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(b)

Acquisition of 1t R B 5 BE B HM AR A A (Continued) (b)

The following table summarises the consideration paid
for business combination and the amounts of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed recognised as at

acquisition date.

36 EXKEftu

(#8)

ELHE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

BBt RABSBEERMERALE

TREMAR S BB EH SRR
RE CEICWBEERDAER

HK$’000
FET
Purchase consideration: BERE

— Cash paid —BNEE 12,212
Total purchase consideration BEAEASE 12,212
Provisional
fair value
EEATHE
HK$'000
FET

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets BRI RBEERDAERE

acquired and liabilities assumed ZEHREH

Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 11,089
Intangible assets — customer contracts & licences B EE — B AH RITFrHE 9,153
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB MR 216
Trade receivables and other receivables J7E LS BR Tk % L Ath B U Fh T8 3,787
Available-for-sales financial asset AL ECEE 6,106
Accruals and other payables FEET B R KB AR BN F0R (15,852)
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFMESHARE (2,287)
Total identifiable net assets AR E R EAER 12,212

Goodwill

]

)il
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36 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of It REH S BE B HM AR A A (Continued) (b)

Aok 1 WA 5 0 % B ik

36 EXKES/tE

BBt RABSBEEERMERALE
(&)

HK$'000
TET
Outflow of cash to business, net of cash acquired: B &% H LA UKEE 2T - MBRFT
WEBRSE
Cash consideration BEHKE 12,212
Less: cash and cash equivalents in B PTBEBINB AR 2R e
subsidiary acquired MRS EEY (11,089)
Net cash outflow on acquisition Wl EE A 2 B R R 1,123

(i) Acquired receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables is
HK$3,787,000 and includes trade receivables with
a fair value of HK$3,751,000. The gross contractual
amount for trade receivables due is HK$3,751,000,

all of which is expected to be collectible.

(i) Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed revenue of
RMB3,622,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4,455,000) and net profit of RMB1,177,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,448,000) to the
Group for the period from 27 June 2012 to 31
December 2012. If the acquisition had occurred on
1 January 2012, consolidated revenue and
consolidated net loss of the Group for the year for
the year ended 31 December 2012 would have
been HK$878,643,000 and HK$173,842,000,

respectively.

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2012, Rich Global Limited (incorporated in
British Virgin Islands) owns 23.08% of the Company’s shares.

The remaining 76.92% of the shares are widely held.

() EBYFERENTIE
JFE W5 B R R EL Ath B UK IE A T
8 4&3,787,000/ T BELRQ
F1&3,751,000 7 7T 2 FE UK BR
e EUWEER B AR B
#3,751,0007% 7T - T8 8§ 7] Uk
B FTEZERE -

(i) WA R % FIF Bt
E-E——FX~A-t+tH=ZE
—ET——F+ZA=+—8"
B EEBRAEETRKRA
AR# 3,622,000 7T (FHE R
4,455,000 7T ) M AL F A R
1,177,0007t( # & B %
1,448,000 7T ) o REBUEER
—E-——F—AF—RH%L£ 8
BHE-_Z——F+=-A=+—
AIEFEAEBRZ KA KRAK
RAEBBFEBS A
878,643,000% T &
173,842,000 % 7T °

37 BEFRS

R-E——F+-A=+—8 REEBE
4 Bf B 5F it 5 32 Z Rich Global Limited #
BARRNET23.08%0 1% 8T 76.92% I (7
HARALES -
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

(0)

Transactions with related parties during the year: @

Except as disclosed below, the Group has no significant
transaction with related parties during the year ended 31

December 2012 (2011: Nil).

37 BELRRZ®

FREBEFZXS
BRTIXEEEN BE_T——F
ToA=THIFEAEELTESE
RAEHIZG(ZF——F 8\)-

2012 2011
— —F—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET

— Rental income (Note i) — RS WA (HaEi) 615 526

— Licence income (Note ii) — B RPN (it ii) 795 -

— Purchase of property, plant and equipment — B B ¥ ¥ #iE & 3R &

(Note iii) (Btatiii) 27,390 -

— Sales of goods (Note iv) — HERm(Mitiv) 467 -

Note iz Rental income from an associated company was charged at a feti: FA—HEBEELARZHSUAT AR
fixed monthly fee mutually agreed between the two parties. 875 REIHE < ElE B AU

Note ii:  Licence income from an associated company was conducted MeEii - KA~ E QR Z I RRARAE
pursuant to terms and conditions set out in the licence agreement SEEBMEARNR-_T—Z—FN0A
entered into by the Group and the associated company on 13 + = B AT S 2 5 R 155 5 P S A AR R
April 2012. R MG AFURER @

Note iii: Purchase of property, plant and equipment was transacted Kiatiii - BEWE  BMERRIEDREAEE
pursuant to the terms and conditions set out in the framework H-MBERAN_FT-——F1A
agreement entered into by the Group and an associated T\ B AT S 2 HE 2R 16 3 P A6 K e fk
company on 18 April 2012. HETZRS -

Note iv: Sales of goods were transacted pursuant to the terms and MeEiv: HEBRDHREAREEE —MEERQ
conditions set out in the agreements entered into by the Group B P AT L 190 3 P B IR AR R IR M E 1T R
and an associated company. 5 °

Balances with an associated company (b) EEERE DR 2R

The balances with the associated company are unsecured, HI SN R SR AEER  TEHR

interest-free and repayable on demand. MILERK(EE -

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Amount due from an associated company JiE Y — Pl 2 A R kIR 42 -
Amount due to an associated company JE 7 — B & A RIRKIE (4,082) -
(4,040) -

Key management compensation (© EEENWHE
During the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012, HE_Z——FR-_Z—-F+-A8

key management compensation is equivalent to the

Directors’” emolument as disclosed in Note 9.

=t BLFE TZEEABHE
HERMFEIMBECESME -



SRR (PR R QA

—E-—EER 163

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Exercise of Exchange Rights in respect of Convertible
Preference Shares of Success Bridge Limited

On 25 January 2013, the Company received an exercise notice
from the preference shareholder (the “SBL Preference
Shareholder”) of Success Bridge Limited (“Success Bridge”), a
subsidiary of the Company, to exercise in full their rights under
the shareholders agreement dated 29 January 2010 entered
among the Company, Success Bridge, and the SBL Preference
Shareholder to exchange all preference shares and ordinary
shares of Success Bridge (that have arisen from the conversion
of the preference shares of Success Bridge) registered in their
names for 103,404,000 new ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) at the exchange price of HK$4.5 per Share. As at
the date of the exercise notice, the SBL Preference Shareholder
held 900 preference shares of Success Bridge. The SBL
Preference Shareholder did not hold any ordinary share of
Success Bridge. Upon completion, Success Bridge became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The transaction was
completed on 31 January 2013. The related financial impact of
this transaction will be reflected within equity of the Group
during the year ending 31 December 2013.

38.

Aok 1 WA 5 0 % B ik

RERKER

1T f Success Bridge Limited 7] # % {8 % B%
B

RZZE-—Z=ZF—-FZ+TEHB ARQRFAEEX
A RIMIE A FlSuccess Bridge Limited ([ Success
Bridge ) 18 5t B AR 3R ([ SBLAE L AR AR 3R 1) 8¢ i
ZIEBEM AETIERERALQA
Success Bridge B2 SBL {2 5t & A& R AT 2 B BA
RIFB-ZEF-A-TNABZRRBEET
ZAER  AMREREERASBTERE TR
& Success Bridge 18 5 % 52 842 Success Bridge
18 % & P EE 4 2 Success Bridge & i i /&
103,404,000 B AR 2 R & AR ([ fn 1) = R
TTEE AN B - SBLE 5t B B R 45 B 900 %
Success Bridge & %t % © SBL & 5t I% ik 5 I £
F§ B 1E fa] Success Bridge & i@ % » 5T AL 1% -
Success Bridge K R AR R 2 E B A A » 5%
BRGERZE—=F—A=+—HEK-
WER S Z AR BT BN AEERE
T—=F+A=+—"BUEFEZETAR
B o
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A summary of the published consolidated results and of the HELEZIERERILERABREY| 2 A%

consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and ~ EEEHENT :
restated as appropriate, is set as below:

Results

(Loss)/profit attributable to
equity holders

Assets and liabilities

Total assets

Total liabilities

Capital and reserves attributable

to the Company’s equity holders

£

A AR
(B])/&H

HEREE

FARBHEERA
BAERA R G

2012
—E-CF

HK$'000
TER

(160,763)

3,192,299

(510,914)

2,626,095

2011

T

HK$'000
TET

(255,493)

3,392,509

(453,467)

2,812,987

Continuing
operations
BE
BEXH
HK$'000
TEL

(190,981)

3,657,369

(489,563)

3,050,460

2010
—T-ZF

Discontinued
operation
BEIE
BERR
HK$'000
FiEL

1,041,256

Year ended 31 December
HET-A=t-ALEE
2009
—ERhF
(Restated)
(E31)
Continuing  Discontinued
Total  operations  operation
SR BRI
Bt BEER GEER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL

850,275 36,663 49,182

3,657,369 1,752,623 565,707

(489,563)  (259,908) (142,646

3,050,460 1,668,227 84,613

Total

At
HK$'000
TAT

85,845

2,318,330

(402,554)

1,752,840

2008
—ERN\F
(Restated)

(E71)
Continuing  Discontinued
operations  operation
it BRI
WXl GEREH
HKS§'000  HK$'000
TAT TATL

29,500 84,850

1,178,467 490,149

(252,308)  (151,639)

926,160 270,807

BBAEREMRFECSAMERAEERGAEE

Total

s
HK$'000
TiET

114,350

1,668,616

(403,947)

1,196,967
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